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PART I  

ITEM 1. BUSINESS  
General.  

We were organized as a Maryland corporation on September 8, 2005 and commenced operations on December 8, 2005. We were originally regulated as a business 
development company (“BDC”) under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the “1940 Act”). As authorized by our shareholders, on September 21, 2011, we withdrew our 
election to be regulated as a BDC and we are no longer subject to the regulatory provisions of the 1940 Act.  

Our objective is to provide stockholders with an attractive risk-adjusted total return, with an emphasis on distributions and distribution growth. We invest primarily in the U.S. 
energy infrastructure sector. We historically were limited to investing in securities of privately-held companies operating in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector. We believe 
the U.S. energy infrastructure sector offers significant opportunities for investment in real property assets. We believe that we can acquire these assets while also satisfying the 
income requirements for qualification as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”). We believe that becoming qualified and electing REIT status is in the best interests of our 
stockholders because a REIT can provide tax-efficient exposure to the energy infrastructure sector.  

If we qualify for and elect REIT status in the future, we generally will not pay federal income tax provided that at least 90 percent of our taxable income is distributed to our 
stockholders.  

We do not plan to make additional investments in securities (other than short term, highly liquid investments to be held pending acquisition of real property assets) and intend 
to liquidate our securities portfolio in an orderly manner. As of November 30, 2011, the fair value of our securities portfolio (excluding short-term investments) totaled $68.9 
million. The fair value of the securities remaining in our portfolio as of November 30, 2011, includes: (i) publicly-traded and liquid master limited partnership (“MLP”) equity 
securities of approximately $27.0 million and (ii) approximately $41.9 million of other illiquid securities issued by seven privately-held companies. The publicly traded 
securities can be liquidated more readily than the others.  

Strategy  

We seek to acquire real property assets from energy infrastructure companies and simultaneously lease these properties to the seller under long-term triple net leases, defined 
as a lease in which the lessee pays rent to the lessor, as well as all taxes, insurance, and maintenance expenses that arise from the use of the property. We expect our leases to 
be configured to include a base lease fee with additional provisions that enable us to participate in the revenue and/or value of the underlying energy infrastructure real 
property asset. These provisions would be considered a contingent rent or fair value repurchase option upon lease termination. These sale-leaseback transactions provide the 
lessee company with a source of financing that is an alternative to other financing sources such as corporate borrowing or equity offerings. Our sale-leaseback transactions 
may occur in conjunction with acquisitions, recapitalizations, growth projects or other corporate transactions involving the lessee company. We may act as one of several 
sources of financing for these transactions by purchasing real property from the seller and net leasing it back to the seller or its successor in interest (the lessee).  

Market Opportunity  

We believe the environment for acquiring energy infrastructure real property assets is attractive for the following reasons:  

� Energy infrastructure provides essential services, and the stable supply and demand today is expected to continue in the future. We believe energy infrastructure is 
the backbone of modern society. The energy infrastructure sector includes the pipes, wires and storage facilities that connect and deliver our most critical resources: 
water, electricity, oil and gas. The demand for these resources is directly correlated with population growth, and has a low correlation to market cycles. The U.S. is the 
largest consumer of crude oil and natural gas products, the third largest producer of crude oil and the largest producer of natural gas products in the world. It is not 
anticipated that the services provided by infrastructure facilities will diminish over time; in fact it is expected to grow. U.S. energy consumption is forecasted to grow 
by 20% from 2009 to the year 2035 according to the U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA), Annual Energy Outlook April 2011. The United States has an 
abundant supply of natural gas with enough natural gas to last for approximately 80 to 100 years, according to various industry sources. Natural gas provides a means 
of energy independence, as nearly 90% of the natural gas consumed in the United States is produced domestically. Demand for natural gas continues to increase as 
environmentally sensitive power generation companies switch to low-cost cleaner burning fuels. Natural gas is viewed as a reliable back-up energy source to 
alternative energy (e.g., wind and solar) as it is not dependent on weather patterns. Natural gas is the cleanest fossil fuel, with 50% and 30% fewer carbon dioxide 
emissions than coal and oil, respectively, as well as lower emissions from sulfur dioxide and other pollutants.  
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� Investment is needed in U.S. energy infrastructure . Due to aging infrastructure, renewable energy requirements and rapid technological advances in the methods used 
to extract oil and natural gas, we believe that substantial amounts of capital will be invested in energy infrastructure. Investments in the power transmission sector in 
2008 were quadruple the average investment level throughout the 1990’s. The National Energy Reliability Council (NERC) projects transmission additions will triple 
from approximately 1,000 miles/year in 2000-2008 to 3,100 miles/year in 2009-2018. These investment metrics align with NERC’s projections that U.S. peak energy 
demand will grow at a rate of 1.3% per year. According to the Brattle Group, this growth translates into $10 billion of annual investments in electric transmission 
alone. In addition, a natural gas market study commissioned in 2009 by the Interstate Natural Gas Association of America Foundation noted that to accommodate the 
geographical shift of natural gas production from mature basins to relatively new areas, it expects a range of investment from $133 to $210 billion of new midstream 
natural gas assets in the U.S. and Canada. We believe that the U.S. energy infrastructure sector’s high level of projected capital expenditures and continuing acquisition 
and divestiture activity provide numerous attractive acquisition opportunities.  
   

� We believe there are a number of attractive operating companies with capital needs. We believe that there are a number of operating companies in the midstream and 
downstream segments of the U.S. energy infrastructure sector with capital expansion plans in which the asset performance will provide stable cash flow characteristics 
similar to those demonstrated by MLPs. We believe that these operating companies have assets that represent attractive financing opportunities for us. The energy 
industry is monopolistic, and high barriers to entry put the responsibility of development and growth on existing operating companies. Decreased federal and state 
funding for infrastructure investment is pushing many operating companies to alternative financing options. In addition, we can offer financing for assets that do not 
qualify for inclusion in an MLP, such as renewables and electric power transmission.  
   

� There is a large segment of assets in energy infrastructure that qualify for being held by a REIT. In 2007, 2009 and 2010 the IRS issued three separate private letter 
rulings that defined certain energy infrastructure assets as real estate assets for tax purposes. The qualifying real estate assets in the energy infrastructure sector are 
electric transmission and distribution systems, pipeline systems and storage and terminaling systems. The private letter rulings treat such assets as qualifying real estate 
assets if the income from these assets is derived from rents on real property. While private letter rulings provide insight into the current thinking of the IRS on tax 
issues, such rulings may only be relied upon by the taxpayer to whom they were issued.  

Investment Outlook  

If we find sufficient suitable REIT-qualifying investments during 2012 and satisfy the REIT requirements throughout 2012, we expect to make an election to be treated as a 
REIT for tax purposes for 2012 by filing a Form 1120-REIT on or before March 15, 2013, or such later date to which we have properly extended filing such income tax return. 
The REIT requirements that we must meet are discussed in detail below, but the principal challenge for us will be meeting the requirement that a substantial percentage of our 
assets be REIT-qualifying investments that produce REIT qualifying income. Our effort to meet that requirement will be accelerated if: (i) we are able to readily identify 
appropriate opportunities to liquidate our securities portfolio, or (ii) we are able to raise capital to fund new acquisitions. In either event, we will need to have identified and be 
able to consummate an adequate number of REIT-qualifying investments meeting our investment criteria. Subject to certain limitations, we may be able to accelerate 
satisfying the REIT requirements by holding non-REIT qualifying investments, including certain private equity investments, through taxable REIT subsidiaries. We do not 
currently have any agreements or binding letters of intent for such investments. These opportunities are in a preliminary stage of review, and consummation of any of these 
opportunities depends on a number of factors beyond our control. There can be no assurance that any of these acquisition opportunities will result in consummated 
transactions. Regardless of our tax status, an investment in us will not result in Unrelated Business Taxable Income (“UBTI”).  

Our Investments  

We pursue our investment objective by investing principally in the energy infrastructure sector. The energy infrastructure sector broadly includes midstream, downstream and 
upstream assets. We intend to focus primarily on midstream and downstream assets as described below.  

� Midstream — the gathering, processing, storing and transmission of energy resources and their byproducts in a form that is usable by wholesale power generation, 
utility, petrochemical, industrial and gasoline customers, including pipelines, gas processing plants, liquefied natural gas facilities and other energy infrastructure 
companies.  
   

� Downstream — the refining of energy sources, and the marketing and distribution of such refined products, such as customer-ready natural gas, natural gas liquids, 
propane and gasoline, to end-user customers, and the generation, transmission and distribution of electricity, including from coal, nuclear, natural gas, agricultural, 
thermal, solar, wind and biomass.  
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Targeted Investment Characteristics  

We anticipate that our targeted real property asset acquisitions will have the following characteristics:  

� Long-Life Assets with Stable Cash Flows and Limited Commodity Price Sensitivity. We will seek real property assets having the potential to generate stable cash flows 
over long periods of time. We have historically invested in companies that own and operate assets with long useful lives and that generate cash flows by providing 
critical services primarily to the producers or end-users of energy. We have attempted to limit the direct exposure to energy commodity price risk in our portfolio. We 
have targeted companies that have a majority of their cash flows generated by contractual obligations. Our planned acquisitions of real property assets will continue to 
reflect these characteristics. Acquired real property assets will be long-lived. (In most cases, we expect the term of the lease will approximate the projected asset life.) 
We anticipate our real property assets will generate contracted cash flows with third party entities over the term of the investment, thus providing stable cash flows 
underlying our leases.  
   

� Experienced Management Teams with Energy Infrastructure Focus. We have targeted assets operated by management teams that have a track record of success and 
that often have substantial knowledge and focus in particular segments of the energy infrastructure sector or with certain types of assets. We expect that our 
management team’s extensive experience and network of business relationships in the energy infrastructure sector will allow us to identify and attract opportunities to 
acquire real property assets that meet these criteria.  
   

� Fixed Asset-Intensive Investments. Most of our investments have been made in companies with a relatively significant base of fixed assets. As we directly acquire 
infrastructure real property assets, our portfolio will reflect the nature of fixed-asset investments. Fixed-asset investments characteristically display such attributes as 
long-term stability, low volatility, diversification via low correlation and relatively inelastic demand.  
   

� Limited Technological Risk. We generally do not target acquisition opportunities involving the application of new technologies or significant geological, drilling or 
development risk.  
   

� Growth Opportunities. We generally will seek to enter into leases that provide base rent and participating rent over the term of the lease. These increases are expected 
to be fixed or tied generally to increases in indices such as the Consumer Price Index (“CPI”). We may also attempt to obtain equity enhancements in connection with 
transactions. These equity enhancements may involve warrants exercisable at a future time to purchase stock of the tenant or borrower or their parent.  

Investments, Assets and Wholly-owned Subsidiary  

Lightfoot Capital Partners, LP and Lightfoot Capita l Partners GP LLC (“Lightfoot”)  

Lightfoot owns controlling interest in Arc Terminals, a limited partnership that operates 11 refined product storage terminals located throughout the United States with a 
combined working capacity of approximately 3.6 million barrels. Arc provides storage and delivery services for petroleum, petrochemical and chemical products to 
customers under long-term storage and throughput contracts. In October 2011, Lightfoot acquired a minority interest in a liquefied natural gas regasification facility located 
in Mississippi.  

Eastern Interconnect Project (“EIP”)  

The EIP project is a 40 percent undivided interest in a 216 mile, 345-KV bulk power transmission line (“Line”) and related equipment and substations including towers, 
easement rights, converters and other grid support components. These transmission assets move electric power across New Mexico between Albuquerque and Clovis. The 
project is leased on a triple net basis through April 1, 2015 to Public Service Company of New Mexico (“PNM”), at which time the lease can be extended, or allowed to 
expire. PNM is an independent electric utility company serving approximately 500,000 customers in New Mexico. PNM is a subsidiary of PNM Resources. EIP is a 
critical, East-West link on the Public Service Company of New Mexico transmission grid. Construction of the Line was completed in 1984 and is expected to have an 
additional twenty years of useful life. The Company does not anticipate any material costs would be incurred should the lease tenant be replaced.  

VantaCore Partners LP (“VantaCore”)  

VantaCore was formed to acquire companies in the aggregate industry and currently owns a quarry and asphalt plant in Clarksville, Tennessee, sand and gravel operations 
located near Baton Rouge, Louisiana and a quarry in Todd County, Kentucky. Aggregates consist of crushed stone, sand and gravel used in construction and concrete. The 
company also controls several hundred acres of land adjacent to its Clarksville location which recently received zoning approval for a port on the Cumberland River.  

High Sierra Energy, LP and High Sierra Energy, GP (“Hi gh Sierra”)  

High Sierra is a Denver based private limited partnership that operates midstream businesses in the energy industry. Its four business units include: transportation, 
treatment, recycling and disposal of oil and gas waste-water; gathering, transportation,  
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logistics and marketing of crude oil; transportation logistics and marketing of natural gas liquids and asphalt; and leasing of well head compression equipment. The 
company’s assets are located in nine of the most prolific oil and natural gas shale plays in the country and have sales in all lower 48 U.S. states and Canada.  

Mowood, LLC (“Mowood”) — Wholly Owned Subsidiary  

Mowood is the holding company of Omega Pipeline, LLC (“Omega”). Omega is a natural gas local distribution company located on the Fort Leonard Wood military 
installation in south-central Missouri. Omega owns approximately 50 miles of pipeline, has a long term contract with the Department of Defense and serves the natural gas 
needs of Fort Leonard Wood in addition to marketing natural gas services to several customers in the surrounding area. We hold 100 percent of the equity interests in 
Mowood.  

Investment Strategies and Due Diligence  

In analyzing potential real property acquisitions, we intend to review all aspects of a transaction, including tenant and asset fundamentals, to determine whether a potential 
acquisition and lease can be structured to satisfy our investment criteria. In evaluating net lease transactions, we generally consider, among other things, the following aspects 
of each transaction:  

� Tenant/Borrower Evaluation — We evaluate each potential tenant or borrower for its creditworthiness, typically considering factors such as management experience, 
industry position and fundamentals, operating history, and capital structure, as well as other factors that may be relevant to a particular acquisition. We seek 
opportunities in which we believe the tenant may have a stable or improving credit profile or credit potential that has not been recognized by the market. In evaluating a 
possible investment, the creditworthiness of a tenant or borrower often will be a more significant factor than the value of the underlying real estate, particularly if the 
underlying property is specifically suited to the needs of the tenant; however, in certain circumstances where the real estate is attractively valued, the creditworthiness 
of the tenant may be a secondary consideration. Whether a prospective tenant or borrower is creditworthy will be determined by our investment department and 
reviewed by the investment committee, as described below. Creditworthy does not necessarily mean “investment grade.”  
   

� Important to Tenant/Borrower Operations — We generally will focus on properties that we believe are essential or important to the ongoing operations of the tenant. 
We believe that these properties provide better protection generally as well as in the event of a bankruptcy, since a tenant/borrower is less likely to risk the loss of a 
critically important lease or property in a bankruptcy proceeding or otherwise.  
   

� Diversification — We attempt to diversify our portfolio to avoid dependence on any one particular tenant, borrower, collateral type, and geographic location within the 
U.S. or tenant/borrower industry. By diversifying, we seek to reduce the adverse effect of a single under-performing investment or a downturn in any particular asset or 
geographic region within the U.S.  
   

� Lease Terms — Generally, the net leased properties we will acquire will be leased on a full recourse basis to the tenants or their affiliates. In addition, we generally will 
seek to include a clause in each lease that provides for increases in rent over the term of the lease. These increases are fixed or tied generally to increases in indices 
such as the CPI. The lease will also generally seek to provide for participation in gross revenues of the tenant at the property, thereby providing exposure to the 
commercial activity of the tenant, and providing the tenant some flexibility in lease terms. Alternatively, a lease may provide for mandated rental increases on specific 
dates, and we may adopt other methods in the future.  
   

� Collateral Evaluation — We review the physical condition of the property and assess the likelihood of replacing the rental stream if the tenant defaults. We also 
generally engage a third party to conduct, or require the seller to conduct a preliminary examination, or Phase 1 assessment, of the site to determine the potential for 
contamination or similar environmental site assessments in an attempt to identify potential environmental liabilities associated with a property prior to its acquisition. If 
potential environmental liabilities are identified, we generally require that identified environmental issues be resolved by the seller prior to property acquisition or, 
where such issues cannot be resolved prior to acquisition, require tenants contractually to assume responsibility for resolving identified environmental issues post-
closing and provide indemnification protections against any potential claims, losses or expenses arising from such matters. We generally rely on our own analysis to 
determine whether to make an acquisition. Our analysis may take into consideration, among other things, the terms and conditions of the particular lease transaction, 
the quality of the lessee’s credit and the conditions of the credit markets at the time the lease transaction is negotiated. The value may be greater than the construction 
cost or the replacement cost of a property, and the actual sale price of a property if sold may be greater or less than the acquisition cost. In cases of special purpose real 
estate which we expect to acquire, a property is examined in light of the prospects for the tenant/borrower’s enterprise and the financial strength and the role of that 
asset in the context of the tenant’s overall viability. Operating results of properties and other collateral may be examined to determine whether or not projected income 
levels are likely to be met.  
   

� Transaction Provisions to Enhance and Protect Value — We attempt to include provisions in the leases that we believe may help protect a real property asset from 
changes in the operating and financial characteristics of a tenant that may affect its ability to satisfy its obligations or reduce the value of the real property asset. Such 
provisions include requiring our consent to specified tenant activity, requiring the tenant to provide indemnification protections, and requiring the tenant to satisfy 
specific operating tests. We may also seek to enhance the likelihood of a tenant’s lease obligations being satisfied through  
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a guaranty of obligations from the tenant’s corporate parent or other entity or a letter of credit. This credit enhancement, if obtained, provides additional financial 
security. However, in markets where competition for net lease transactions is strong, some or all of these provisions may be replaced by other measures of credit 
quality such as tenant investment in leasehold improvements and commercial enterprise value of the tenant business conducted in the property.  

In addition, in some circumstances, tenants may retain the right to repurchase the leased property. The option purchase price is generally the greater of the contract purchase 
price or the fair market value of the property at the time the option is exercised.  

� Equity Enhancements — We may attempt to obtain equity enhancements in connection with transactions. These equity enhancements may involve warrants exercisable 
at a future time to purchase stock of the tenant or borrower or their parent. If warrants are obtained, and become exercisable, and if the value of the stock subsequently 
exceeds the exercise price of the warrant, equity enhancements can help achieve the goal of increasing investor returns.  
   

� Other Real Estate Related Assets — As other opportunities arise, we may also seek to expand the portfolio to include other types of real estate-related investments, in 
all cases within the energy infrastructure sector, such as:  

� equity investments in real properties that are not long-term net leased to a single-tenant and may include partially leased properties, multi-tenanted properties, 
vacant or undeveloped properties and properties subject to short-term net leases, among others;  
   

� mortgage loans secured by real properties;  
   

� subordinated interests in first mortgage real estate loans, or B-notes;  
   

� mezzanine loans related to real estate, which are senior to the borrower’s equity position but subordinated to other third- party financing; and  
   

� equity and debt securities (including preferred equity, limited partnership interests, trusts and other higher-yielding structured debt and equity investments) 
issued by companies that are engaged in real-estate-related businesses as defined by regulations promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”), 
including other REITs.  

Real Property Asset Management  

We believe that effective management of our assets is essential to maintain and enhance property values. Important aspects of asset management include restructuring 
transactions to meet the evolving needs of current tenants, re-leasing properties, refinancing debt, selling properties and knowledge of the bankruptcy process.  

We are externally managed by Corridor InfraTrust Management, LLC (formerly Corridor Energy, LLC) (“Corridor”). The Corridor team consists of energy asset professionals 
with experience across several segments of the energy sector and is primarily responsible for evaluating, negotiating and structuring potential real property asset opportunities. 
Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C., a registered investment adviser (“TCA”), provides us certain securities focused investment services necessary to evaluate, monitor and 
liquidate our remaining securities portfolio. Before a real property asset is acquired by us, the transaction is reviewed and approved by the managing directors of Corridor and 
TCA. The approval is subject to final approval by our Board of Directors. Our Board of Directors is not directly involved in originating or negotiating potential asset 
acquisitions but instead functions as a separate and final step in the process.  

We monitor, on an ongoing basis, compliance by tenants with their lease obligations and other factors that could affect the financial performance of any of our properties. 
Monitoring involves receiving assurances that each tenant has paid real estate taxes, assessments and other expenses relating to the properties it occupies and confirming that 
appropriate insurance coverage is being maintained by the tenant. We review financial statements of tenants and undertake regular physical inspections of the condition and 
maintenance of properties. Additionally, we periodically analyze each tenant’s financial condition, the industry in which each tenant operates and each tenant’s relative 
strength in its industry.  

Financing Strategies  

Consistent with our asset acquisition policies, we use leverage when available on terms we believe are favorable. The amount of leverage that we may employ will depend on 
our assessment of market conditions and other factors at the time of any proposed borrowing. Although we currently do not anticipate doing so, the amount of total leverage 
we employ may exceed 50% of our total assets, which was the maximum amount of leverage we could employ as a BDC. Substantially all of our mortgage loans are expected 
to be non-recourse. A lender on non-recourse mortgage debt generally has recourse only to the property collateralizing such debt and not to any of our other assets, while full 
recourse financing would give a lender recourse to all of our assets. The use of non-recourse debt, therefore, helps us to limit the exposure of all of our assets to any one debt 
obligation. Lenders may, however, have recourse to our other assets in limited circumstances not related to the repayment of the indebtedness, such as under an environmental 
indemnity. We also expect to have an unsecured line of credit that can be used in connection with refinancing existing debt and making new acquisitions, as well as to meet 
other working capital needs. We expect to incur debt which bears interest at fixed rates, or is effectively converted to fixed rates through interest rate caps or swap agreements.  
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Competition  

We compete with public and private funds, commercial and investment banks and commercial financing companies to make the types of investments that we plan to make in 
the U.S. energy infrastructure sector. Many of our competitors are substantially larger and have considerably greater financial, technical and marketing resources than us. For 
example, some competitors may have a lower cost of funds and access to funding sources than are available to us. In addition, some of our competitors may have higher risk 
tolerances or different risk assessments, allowing them to consider a wider variety of investments and establish more relationships than us. These competitive conditions may 
adversely affect our ability to make investments in the energy infrastructure sector and could adversely affect our distributions to stockholders.  

Competitive Advantages  

We believe that we are well positioned to meet the financing needs of companies within the U.S. energy infrastructure sector for the following reasons:  

� Attractive Strategic Partner for Energy and Power Infrastructure Companies. We believe that we are a desirable partner for energy and power infrastructure companies 
because we have specialized knowledge of the economic, regulatory, and stakeholder considerations faced by them. We do not intend to compete with the operations of 
our lessees and are willing to enter into long-term lease and financing arrangements that suit the requirements and achieve the goals of energy and power infrastructure 
companies.  
   

� Broad Energy and Power Infrastructure Scope. We intend to focus on assets, among others, that transmit commodities or serve customers which are not permissible 
assets to be owned by other specialized energy companies such as MLPs. For example the Eastern Interconnect Project and Mowood's Omega pipeline are not MLP 
qualified assets.  
   

� Efficient Capital Provider. If we are able to qualify as a REIT, our shareholders will not receive UBTI or Effectively Connected Income. This offers us access to 
investors which desire the risk adjusted return profile but which may have limitations on investing in other specialized infrastructure vehicles such as direct investment 
in infrastructure, private equity funds, or MLPs. As a REIT, TTO is expected to have a lower overall cost of capital when compared to certain other energy and power 
infrastructure acquirors, which should enhance our future cash flows and provide for increased value growth opportunities.  
   

� Disciplined Investment Philosophy. As we focus on acquiring real property assets, our investment approach emphasizes overall asset operational and financial 
performance with the potential for enhanced returns through incremental asset growth, capital appreciation, and minimization of downside risk. Our process involves 
an assessment of the overall attractiveness of the specific subsector of the energy infrastructure sector in which a prospective operating company is involved; such 
company’s specific competitive position within that subsector; operational asset engineering due diligence; potential commodity price, supply and demand and 
regulatory concerns; the stability and potential growth of the prospective real property asset’s cash flows; the prospective operating company's management track 
record and our ability to structure an attractive investment.  
   

� Experienced Management Team. The principals of Corridor have an average of over 24 years of experience in energy operations of multi-national electric and gas 
utilities, national energy marketing and trading businesses and in optimizing portfolios for real energy asset investments. Based on their real property asset operational 
experience and strong industry relationships we believe the principals of Corridor provide the expertise and knowledge necessary to acquire real property assets with 
strong performance standards. The members of TCA’s investment committee have an average of over 24 years of financial investment experience. TCA’s investment 
professionals are responsible for evaluating, monitoring and liquidating our remaining securities portfolio.  
   

� Flexible Transaction Structuring. We are not subject to many of the regulatory limitations that govern traditional lending institutions such as commercial banks. As a 
result, we can be flexible in structuring asset acquisition transactions. This structuring flexibility enables our leases and debt instruments to fit the cash flow 
characteristics of the assets that we acquire. TCA’s and Corridor’s professionals have substantial experience in structuring investments that balance the needs of an 
energy infrastructure operating company with appropriate risk control.  

While we believe we are well positioned to meet the financing needs of companies within the U.S. energy infrastructure sector, an investment in our securities involves certain 
risks that may preclude us from achieving our investment objective. For example, we may be unable to identify and complete acquisitions of real property assets or sell real 
property assets at times or at prices that we desire. In addition, if we elect to be taxed as a REIT, the loss of our REIT status would have significant adverse consequences.  

Employees  

We do not currently have or expect to have any employees. Pursuant to a Management Agreement and Administration Agreement, Corridor has agreed to use its reasonable 
best efforts to present us with suitable acquisition opportunities consistent with our investment objectives and policies and is generally responsible, subject to the supervision 
and review of our Board of Directors, for the day to day operations.  
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Management Agreement  

Pursuant to the Management Agreement, we pay Corridor quarterly a base management fee equal to 0.25% (1.00% annualized) of our average monthly Managed Assets for 
such quarter, calculated and paid in arrears within 30 days of the end of each fiscal quarter. The term “Managed Assets” as used in the calculation of the management fee 
means all of our securities and real property assets (including any securities or real property assets purchased with or attributable to borrowed funds) minus accrued liabilities 
other than (1) deferred taxes and (2) debt entered into for the purpose of leverage. Accrued liabilities are expenses incurred in the normal course of our operations. For 
purposes of the definition of Managed Assets, “securities” includes our securities portfolio, valued at then current market value. For purposes of the definition of Managed 
Assets, “real property assets” includes our assets invested, directly or indirectly, in equity interests in or loans secured by real estate and personal property owned in connection 
with such real estate (including acquisition related costs and acquisition costs that may be allocated to intangibles or are unallocated), valued at the aggregate historical cost, 
before reserves for depreciation, amortization, impairment charges or bad debts or other similar noncash reserves. The base management fee for any partial quarter will be 
appropriately prorated.  

We also pay Corridor quarterly an incentive fee of 10% of the increase in distributions paid over a threshold distribution equal to $0.125 per share per quarter, calculated and 
paid in arrears within 30 days of the end of each fiscal quarter. No incentive fee shall be paid on (i) any dividend paid after the Board of Directors has determined to liquidate 
us, or (ii) all or any portion of any dividend expected by the Board of Directors not to be sustainable in subsequent quarters. The incentive fee for any partial quarter will be 
appropriately prorated. At least half of any incentive fee paid to Corridor must be reinvested by Corridor in our common stock.  

Administrative Services  

Pursuant to the Management Agreement, Corridor furnishes us with office facilities and clerical and administrative services necessary for our operation (other than services 
provided by our custodian, accounting agent, administrator, dividend and interest paying agent and other service providers). Corridor is authorized to enter into agreements 
with third parties to provide such services. To the extent we request, Corridor will (i) oversee the performance and payment of the fees of our service providers and make such 
reports and recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning such matters as the parties deem desirable, (ii) respond to inquiries and otherwise assist such service 
providers in the preparation and filing of regulatory reports, proxy statements, and stockholder communications, and the preparation of materials and reports for the Board of 
Directors; (iii) establish and oversee the implementation of borrowing facilities or other forms of leverage authorized by the Board of Directors and (iv) supervise any other 
aspect of our administration as may be agreed upon by us and Corridor. We have agreed, pursuant to the Agreement, to reimburse Corridor for all out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred in providing the foregoing.  

We bear all expenses not specifically assumed by Corridor and incurred in our operations. The compensation and allocable routine overhead expenses of all investment 
professionals of Corridor and its staff, when and to the extent engaged in providing us investment advisory management services, is provided and paid for by Corridor and not 
us.  

Duration and Termination  

The Management Agreement was initially reviewed and approved by our Board of Directors. It will remain in effect until December 31, 2012 and is renewable annually 
thereafter by us. The Management Agreement may be terminated by us, by vote of the Board of Directors, without penalty upon not more than 60 days’ written notice to 
Corridor. The Management Agreement may also be terminated by Corridor without penalty upon not less than 60 days’ written notice to us.  

Our Manager  

We are externally managed by Corridor InfraTrust Management, LLC (formerly Corridor Energy, LLC) (“Corridor”). Corridor is an asset manager specializing in financing 
the acquisition or development of infrastructure real property assets. Corridor assists us in identifying infrastructure real property asset investments that can be leased to 
businesses that make goods, provide services or own assets other than securities, which business we refer to herein as “operating companies” and is generally responsible for 
our day-to-day operations. Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C., a registered investment adviser (“TCA”), provides us certain securities focused investment services necessary to 
evaluate, monitor and liquidate our remaining securities portfolio and also provides us with certain operational (i.e. non-investment) services. Corridor compensates TCA for 
the securities focused investments and services TCA provides to us.  

Corridor currently has four investment professionals who are primarily responsible for the origination, structuring and managing of our real property asset investments. This 
team provides investors and operator partners with the industry expertise of energy operations, energy portfolio management and capital markets. Corridor is located at 4200 
W. 115th Street, Suite 210, Leawood, Kansas 66211. Corridor is an affiliate of TCA.  
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Richard C. (“Rick”) Green  
Mr. Green serves as our Chairman and is a co-founder and Managing Director of Corridor. He has spent more than 30 years in the energy industry serving as a CEO for more 
than 20 years. During his tenure, Mr. Green demonstrated leadership and perseverance in pioneering the strategy and successful execution of a significant business expansion 
of Aquila Inc., formerly UtiliCorp United, to a Fortune 30 company. Aquila Inc. was an international electric and gas utility business and national energy marketing and 
trading business. Mr. Green has also been credited with leading a successful wind down of the merchant trading operations of Aquila Inc. to provide shareholder focus on the 
company’s utility market strategy during the 2002 energy market crisis. From 2006-2008, Mr. Green successfully directed the complicated separation and ultimate sale of 
Aquila’s multi-state utility operations. Mr. Green then founded The Calvin Group LLC, a consulting firm that leveraged the management and operational experience of the 
partners to catalyze the management teams of energy companies. Mr. Green is currently on the board, and was previously a chairman of, the Midwest Research Institute, and 
has also served on the board for the National Renewable Energy Laboratories in Golden, Colorado.  
 

David J. Schulte, CFA, CPA  
Mr. Schulte is a co-founder and Managing Director of both Corridor and TCA, where he serves on the investment committee, and is also our Chief Executive Officer. In 
addition, Mr. Schulte serves as Senior Vice President of Tortoise Energy Infrastructure Corporation (NYSE: TYG), Tortoise Energy Capital Corporation (NYSE: TYY), 
Tortoise North American Energy Corporation (NYSE: TYN), Tortoise Power and Energy Infrastructure Fund Inc. (NYSE: TPZ), Tortoise MLP Fund, Inc. (NYSE: NTG) and 
Tortoise Pipeline & Energy Fund, Inc. (NYSE: TPZ). From 1993-2002, Mr. Schulte was a Managing Director at Kansas City Equity Partners, L.C. (“KCEP”). While a partner 
at KCEP, Mr. Schulte led private financing for two growth MLP’s in the energy infrastructure sector, Inergy, L.P., where he served as a director, and MarkWest Energy 
Partners, L.P., where he was a board observer. Prior to joining KCEP, Mr. Schulte had over five years of experience completing acquisition and public equity financings as an 
investment banker at the predecessor of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc. In 2011, Mr. Schulte and his partners at TCA were awarded the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year® 
award for financial services companies in the Central Midwest region.  

David W. Haley  
Mr. Haley is a Director of Corridor and our Senior Vice President. He has over 20 years of experience in the energy industry. Prior to joining Corridor, Mr. Haley was a Vice 
President at the consulting firm, The Calvin Group. From 2002-2008 he was Managing Director of EnFocus, a consulting firm focused on risk management and structuring 
transactions for clients in the energy and financial services industries. Mr. Haley was previously Vice President of Cross Commodity Trading for Aquila Merchant Services, 
where he directed a group engaged in market marking, risk management and proprietary trading of crude oil, natural gas, residual and heating oil, electricity, coal and financial 
transmission rights/transmission congestion credits. He was also responsible for managing the risks and optimizing a portfolio of asset investments including power plants, 
electric transmission, natural gas transportation and natural gas storage. Before joining Aquila, he was Vice President of Cinergy Corp. where he directed structuring, valuation 
analysis and transaction pricing for mergers & acquisitions and leveraged buyouts/ financial restructurings of independent power projects.  

Rebecca M. Sandring  
Ms. Sandring is Principal of Corridor and our Treasurer. She has over 20 years of experience in the energy industry. As a Vice President with The Calvin Group, she created 
strategic business plans resulting in third party investments and provided financial leadership to a wind development company, which resulted in planned project cost 
reductions. From 1993-2008 Ms. Sandring had various roles at Aquila Inc, formerly UtiliCorp United, a regulated gas and electric utility serving a multi-state region with 
international operations including transmission, distribution and generation. Ms. Sandring’s roles at UtiliCorp and then Aquila Inc. were in operational finance, and included 
business valuations, project and corporate finance, process efficiency, implementation of complex GAAP accounting policies and internal accounting and risk system designs. 
As Director of Finance at Aquila, Inc. she was responsible for leading the internal finance team, which worked with external advisors regarding the strategic alternatives for 
Aquila, Inc. In her role as Director of Finance for the unregulated power generation division, which had over 4,000 megawatts of generation capacity, she was responsible for 
building the accounting, strategic planning and forecasting team and process.  

Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C.  

Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C., a registered investment adviser, provides us certain securities focused investment services necessary to evaluate, monitor and liquidate our 
remaining securities portfolio and also provides us with certain operational (i.e. non-investment) services. We have also entered into an Administration Agreement with TCA 
pursuant to which TCA acts as our administrator and performs (or oversees or arranges for the performance of) the administrative services necessary for our operation, 
including without limitation providing us with equipment, clerical, bookkeeping and record keeping services. For these services we pay TCA a fee equal to 0.04% of our 
aggregate average daily Managed Assets, with a minimum annual fee of $30,000.  
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The investment committee of TCA consists of H. Kevin Birzer, Zachary A. Hamel, Kenneth P. Malvey, Terry C. Matlack and David J. Schulte, all of whom are Managing 
Directors of TCA. TCA is located at 11550 Ash Street, Suite 300, Leawood, Kansas 66211. TCA specializes in listed energy infrastructure investments. As of January 31, 
2012, TCA had approximately $7.8 billion of assets under management in NYSE listed closed-end investment companies, an open-end fund and other accounts. Corridor 
compensates TCA for the services TCA provides to us, other than the services provided to us pursuant to the Administration Agreement to which we and TCA are a party.  

Consultant Arrangement  

Corridor has retained Kenmont Capital Partners L.P. as a consultant. Kenmont assists Corridor in identifying potential real property asset acquisition opportunities for us. 
Corridor compensates Kenmont for the services it provides to us.  

Available Information  

Our principal executive offices are located at 11550 Ash Street, Suite 300, Leawood, Kansas 66211. Our telephone number is (913) 981-1020, or toll-free 1-866-362-9331, and 
our Web site is www.tortoiseadvisors.com/tto.cfm. We are required to file reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. We will make available free of 
charge our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports on or through our Web site at 
www.tortoiseadvisors.com/tto.cfm as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. This information may also be 
obtained, without charge, upon request by calling us at (913) 981-1020 or toll-free at (866) 362-9331. This information will also be available at the SEC’s Public Reference 
Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The 
SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information filed by us with the SEC which is available on the SEC’s internet 
site at www.sec.gov. Please note that any internet addresses provided in this Form 10-K are for informational purposes only and are not intended to be hyperlinks. 
Accordingly, no information found and/or provided at such internet address is intended or deemed to be included by reference herein.  

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS  
There are many risks and uncertainties that can affect our future business, financial performance or share price. Many of these are beyond our control. A description follows 
of some of the important factors that could have a material negative impact on our future business, operating results, financial condition or share price. This discussion 
includes a number of forward-looking statements. You should refer to the description of the qualifications and limitations on forward-looking statements in the first paragraph 
under Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of this Form 10-K.  

Risks Related to Our Operations  

Investors are no longer protected by the regulatory  provisions of the 1940 Act.  
On September 21, 2011, we withdrew our election to be regulated as a BDC under the 1940 Act. Thus, we are no longer regulated as a BDC and are no longer subject to the 
regulatory provisions of the 1940 Act. The 1940 Act is designed to protect the interests of investors in investment companies, with requirements relating to insurance, custody, 
and capital structure, composition of the Board of Directors, affiliated transactions, leverage limitations and compensation arrangements.  

We intend in the future to elect to be taxed as a RE IT, but may not be able to qualify as a REIT.  
We intend to elect to be a REIT for federal income tax purposes. In order to qualify as a REIT, a substantial percentage of our income must be derived from, and our assets 
consist of, real estate assets, and, in certain cases, other investment property. We intend to acquire and manage investments to satisfy the REIT tests. Whether a particular 
investment is considered a real estate asset for such purposes depends upon the facts and circumstances of the investment. Due to the factual nature of the determination, at this 
time we do not know whether any particular investment will qualify as a real estate asset or satisfy the REIT income tests. In determining whether an investment is a real 
property asset, we will look at the Code and the IRS’s interpretation of the Code in regulations, published rulings, private letter rulings and other guidance. In the case of a 
private letter ruling issued to another taxpayer, we would not be able to bind the IRS to the holding of such ruling. If we fail to qualify as a REIT we may not be able to 
achieve our objectives and the value of our stock may decline.  

If we elect to be taxed as a REIT, we would be subj ect to a corporate level tax on certain built in ga ins if certain assets were sold during the 10 year 
period following such election.  
We are currently taxed as a C corporation, which subjects our income to double level taxation. Generally, a REIT is treated as a flow-through entity for federal income tax 
purposes, as a REIT’s income is generally subject to a single level of federal taxation.  

If we find sufficient REIT qualifying investments during 2012 and satisfy the REIT requirements throughout 2012, we may make an election to be treated as a REIT 
throughout 2012 by filing a Form 1120 REIT on or before March 15, 2013, or such later date to which we have properly extended filing such return.  
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A REIT generally operates without incurring any corporate level federal income tax, which is accomplished by the REIT annually distributing at least ninety percent of its 
REIT taxable income. If it satisfies the minimum distribution requirement, the REIT generally is entitled to a deduction for dividends paid. The REIT stockholders are then 
required to report the REIT dividend as ordinary income. A REIT stockholder’s receipt of dividends generally will not qualify as qualified dividend income or for the 
dividends received deduction discussed above. Thus, if we are able to qualify as a REIT, we will be more favorably treated for federal income tax purposes than our current 
taxation.  

In order to qualify as a REIT, we would be required to satisfy gross income and asset tests. Generally, such tests require that a substantial percentage of the REIT’s income be 
derived from, and assets consist of, real estate assets, and, in certain cases, other investment property. This will be a factual determination that we generally will have to make 
annually with respect to the income tests and quarterly with respect to the asset tests.  

If we elect to be taxed as a REIT, loss of our statu s as a REIT would have significant adverse consequen ces.  
If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, then we would be subject to federal income tax (including any applicable minimum tax) on our taxable income computed in 
the usual manner for corporate taxpayers without any deduction for distributions to our stockholders. Unless entitled to relief under specific statutory provisions, we would be 
disqualified from treatment as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year of losing our REIT status, assuming we had previously been treated as a REIT. To renew 
our REIT qualification at the end of such a four-year period, we would be required to distribute all of our current and accumulated earnings and profits before the end of the 
period and the funds available for satisfying our obligations and for distribution to our stockholders could be significantly reduced.  

If we elect to be taxed as a REIT, re-characterizati on of sale-leaseback transactions may cause us to l ose our REIT status.  
We intend to purchase properties and simultaneously lease the same property back to the seller of such properties. While we will use our best efforts to structure any such sale-
leaseback transaction so that the lease will be characterized as a “true lease,” thereby allowing us to be treated as the owner of the property for U.S. federal income tax 
purposes, the IRS could challenge such characterization. In the event that any sale-leaseback transaction is re-characterized as a financing transaction or loan for U.S. federal 
income tax purposes, deductions for depreciation and cost recovery relating to such property would be disallowed. If a sale-leaseback transaction were so re-characterized, we 
might fail to satisfy the REIT qualification “asset tests” or the “income tests” and, consequently, lose our REIT status effective with the year of re-characterization. 
Alternatively, the amount of our REIT taxable income could be recalculated which might also cause us to fail to meet the distribution requirement for a taxable year.  

We may be unable to identify and complete acquisiti ons of real property assets.  
Our ability to identify and complete acquisitions of real property assets on favorable terms and conditions are subject to the following risks:  

� we may be unable to acquire a desired asset because of competition from other investors with significant capital, including publicly traded REITs and institutional 
investment funds;  
   

� competition from other investors may significantly increase the purchase price of a desired real property asset or result in less favorable terms;  
   

� we may not complete the acquisition of a desired real property asset even if we have signed an agreement to acquire such real property asset because such agreements 
are subject to customary conditions to closing, including completion of due diligence investigations to our satisfaction;  
   

� we may be unable to finance acquisitions of real property assets on favorable terms or at all.  

Net leases may not result in fair market lease rates  over time.  
We expect a large portion of our future income to come from net leases. Net leases typically have longer lease terms and, thus, there is an increased risk that if market rental 
rates increase in future years, the rates under our net leases will be less than fair market rental rates during those years. As a result, our income and distributions could be lower 
than they would otherwise be if we did not engage in net leases. We generally will seek to include a clause in each lease that provides increases in rent over the term of the 
lease, but there can be no assurance we will be successful in obtaining such a clause.  

Some losses related to our real property assets may  not be covered by insurance and would adversely im pact distributions to stockholders.  
Our leases will generally require the tenant company to carry comprehensive liability and casualty insurance on our properties comparable in amounts and against risks 
customarily insured against by other companies engaged in similar businesses in the same geographic region as our tenant company. We believe the required coverage will be 
of the type, and amount, customarily obtained by an owner of similar properties. However, there are some types of losses, such as catastrophic acts of nature, acts of war or 
riots, for which we or our tenants cannot obtain insurance at an acceptable cost. If there is an uninsured loss or a loss in  
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excess of insurance limits, we could lose both the revenues generated by the affected property and the capital we have invested in the property if our tenant company fails to 
pay us the casualty value in excess of such insurance limit, if any, or to indemnify us for such loss. This would in turn reduce the amount of income available for distributions. 
We would, however, remain obligated to repay any secured indebtedness or other obligations related to the property. Since September 11, 2001, the cost of insurance 
protection against terrorist acts has risen dramatically. The cost of coverage for acts of terrorism is currently mitigated by the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act (“TRIA”). If TRIA 
is not extended beyond its current expiration date of December 31, 2014, our tenants may incur higher insurance costs and greater difficulty in obtaining insurance that covers 
terrorist-related damages. There can be no assurance our tenant companies will be able to obtain terrorism insurance coverage, or that any coverage they do obtain will 
adequately protect our properties against loss from terrorist attack.  

If a sale-leaseback transaction is re-characterized  in a lessee company’ s bankruptcy proceeding, our financial condition co uld be adversely 
affected.  
We intend to enter into sale-leaseback transactions, whereby we purchase a property and then simultaneously lease the same property back to the seller. In the event of the 
bankruptcy of a lessee company, a transaction structured as a sale-leaseback may be re-characterized as either a financing or a joint venture, either of which outcomes could 
adversely affect our business. If the sale-leaseback were re-characterized as a financing, we might not be considered the owner of the property, and as a result would have the 
status of a creditor in relation to the lessee company. In that event, we would no longer have the right to sell or encumber our ownership interest in the property. Instead, we 
would have a claim against the lessee company for the amounts owed under the lease, with the claim arguably secured by the property. The lessee company/debtor might have 
the ability to restructure the terms, interest rate and amortization schedule of its outstanding balance. If confirmed by the bankruptcy court, we could be bound by the new 
terms, and prevented from foreclosing our lien on the property. If the sale-leaseback were re-characterized as a joint venture, we and the lessee company could be treated as 
co-ventures with regard to the property. As a result, we could be held liable, under some circumstances, for debts incurred by the lessee company relating to the property. 
Either of these outcomes could adversely affect our cash flow and the amount available for distribution.  

We may not be able to sell our real property asset investments when we desire.  
Investments in real property assets are relatively illiquid compared to other investments. Accordingly, we may not be able to sell real property asset investments when we 
desire or at prices acceptable to us in response to changes in economic or other conditions. This could substantially reduce the funds available for satisfying our obligations and 
for distribution to our stockholders.  

Costs of complying with governmental laws and regula tions, including those relating to environmental ma tters, may adversely affect our income 
and the cash available for distribution.  
We have invested, and expect to continue to invest, in real property assets, which are subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment and human 
health and safety. These laws and regulations generally govern wastewater discharges, air emissions, the operation and removal of underground and aboveground storage 
tanks, the use, storage, treatment, transportation and disposal of solid and hazardous materials, and the remediation of contamination associated with disposals. Environmental 
laws and regulations may impose joint and several liabilities on tenants, owners or operators for the costs to investigate or remediate contaminated properties, regardless of 
fault or whether the acts causing the contamination were legal. This liability could be substantial. In addition, the presence of hazardous substances, or the failure to properly 
remediate these substances, may adversely affect our ability to sell, rent or pledge such property as collateral for future borrowings.  

Some of these laws and regulations have been amended so as to require compliance with new or more stringent standards as of future dates. Compliance with new or more 
stringent laws or regulations or stricter interpretation of existing laws may require material expenditures by us. Future laws, ordinances or regulations may impose material 
environmental liability. Additionally, our tenant companies’ operations, the existing condition of land when we buy it, operations in the vicinity of our properties, such as the 
presence of underground storage tanks, or activities of unrelated third parties may affect our properties. In addition, there are various local, state and federal fire, health, life-
safety and similar regulations with which we may be required to comply, and that may subject us to liability in the form of fines or damages for noncompliance. Any material 
expenditures, fines, or damages we must pay will reduce our ability to make distributions.  

State and federal laws in this area are constantly evolving, and we intend to monitor these laws and take commercially reasonable steps to protect ourselves from the impact of 
these laws, including where deemed necessary, obtaining environmental assessments of properties that we acquire; however, we will not obtain an independent third-party 
environmental assessment for every property we acquire. In addition, any such assessment that we do obtain may not reveal all environmental liabilities or whether a prior 
owner of a property created a material environmental condition not known to us. The cost of defending against claims of liability, of compliance with environmental regulatory 
requirements, of remediating any contaminated property, or of paying personal injury claims would materially adversely affect our business, assets or results of operations and, 
consequently, amounts available for distribution.  
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If we elect to be treated as a REIT, we will be requ ired to make distributions, other than capital gain  distributions, to our stockholders each year in 
the amount of at least 90% of our REIT taxable inco me As a result; we will continue to need additional capital to make new investments. If 
additional funds are unavailable or not available o n favorable terms, our ability to make new investme nts will be impaired.  
If we elect to be treated as a REIT, we will be required to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, and as such we may require additional capital to make new 
investments or carry existing investments. We may acquire additional capital from the issuance of securities senior to our common shares, including additional borrowings or 
other indebtedness or the issuance of additional securities. We may also acquire additional capital through the issuance of additional equity. However, we may not be able to 
raise additional capital in the future on favorable terms or at all. Unfavorable economic conditions could increase our funding costs, limit our access to the capital markets or 
result in a decision by lenders not to extend credit to us. We may issue debt securities, other instruments of indebtedness or preferred stock, and we borrow money from banks 
or other financial institutions, which we refer to collectively as “senior securities.” As a result of issuing senior securities, we will also be exposed to typical risks associated 
with leverage, including increased risk of loss. If we issue preferred securities which will rank “senior” to our common shares in our capital structure, the holders of such 
preferred securities may have separate voting rights and other rights, preferences or privileges more favorable than those of our common shares, and the issuance of such 
preferred securities could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a transaction or a change of control that might involve a premium price for security holders or 
otherwise be in our best interest.  

To the extent our ability to issue debt or other senior securities is constrained, we will depend on issuances of additional common shares to finance new investments. If we 
raise additional funds by issuing more of our common shares or senior securities convertible into, or exchangeable for, our common shares, the percentage ownership of our 
stockholders at that time would decrease, and you may experience dilution.  

Corridor may serve as a manager to other entities, w hich may create conflicts of interest not in the be st interest of us or our stockholders.  
Corridor’s services under the Management Agreement are not exclusive, and, while it currently does not have any contractual arrangement to do so, it is free to furnish the 
same or similar services to other entities, including businesses that may directly or indirectly compete with us so long as its services to us are not impaired by the provision of 
such services to others. Corridor and its members may have obligations to other entities, the fulfillment of which might not be in the best interests of us or our stockholders.  

We will be dependent upon key personnel of Corridor  for our future success.  
We have entered into a management agreement with Corridor to provide full management services to us for real property asset investments. We will be dependent on the 
diligence, expertise and business relationships of the management of Corridor to implement our strategy of acquiring real property assets. The departure of one or more 
investment professionals of Corridor could have a material adverse effect on our ability to implement this strategy and on the value of our common shares. There can be no 
assurance that we will be successful in implementing our strategy.  

We are dependent upon TCA’s key personnel to effectu ate an orderly liquidation of our remaining securit ies portfolio.  
TCA’s investment professionals and management will evaluate, monitor and liquidate our remaining securities portfolio. The departure of one or more investment 
professionals of TCA could have a material adverse effect on our ability to achieve an orderly liquidation of our remaining securities portfolio. We will rely on employees of 
TCA who will be devoting significant amounts of their time to non-Company related activities of TCA. To the extent TCA’s investment professionals and management are 
unable to, or do not, devote sufficient amounts of their time and energy to our affairs, our performance may suffer.  

Our remaining securities investments in privately- held companies present certain challenges, includin g availability of information about these 
companies and illiquidity that may impact our abili ty to liquidate investments in a timely and/ or adv antageous manner.  
We currently have securities investments remaining in privately-held companies. Generally, little public information exists about these companies, and we are required to rely 
on the ability of TCA to obtain adequate information to evaluate the potential risks and returns involved with these companies. If TCA is unable to obtain all material 
information about these companies, including with respect to operational, regulatory, environmental, litigation and managerial risks, TCA may not make a fully- informed 
investment decision, and we may lose some or all of the money invested in these companies. Substantially all of these securities are subject to legal and other restrictions on 
resale or are otherwise less liquid than publicly traded securities. The illiquidity of these investments may make it difficult for us to sell such investments at advantageous 
times and prices or in a timely manner. In addition, if we are required to liquidate all or a portion of our remaining securities portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly 
less than the value at which we previously have recorded our investments. We also may face other restrictions on our ability to liquidate an investment in the securities of a 
portfolio company to the extent that we or one of our affiliates have material non-public information regarding such portfolio company.  
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All of our remaining securities investments are, and  will continue to be, recorded at fair value. Becaus e such valuations are inherently uncertain, 
our determinations of fair value may differ materia lly from the values that would have been used if a ready market for these securities existed.  
We continue to hold investments that are in the form of securities or loans that are not publicly traded. The fair value of these investments may not be readily determinable. For 
securities investments that are reported at fair value, we will value these investments quarterly at fair value. We have retained Lincoln Partners Advisors, LLC (an independent 
valuation firm) to provide third party valuation consulting services. The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for determining the fair value of the investments in good 
faith. The types of factors that may be considered in fair value pricing of an investment include the nature and realizable value of any collateral, the portfolio company’s 
earnings and ability to make payments, the markets in which the portfolio company does business, comparison to publicly traded companies, discounted cash flow and other 
relevant factors. Because such valuations are inherently uncertain, our determinations of fair value may differ materially from the values that would have been used if a ready 
market for these securities existed. As a result, we may not be able to dispose of our holdings at a price equal to or greater than the determined fair value, which could have a 
negative impact on our equity and earnings.  

The lack of liquidity in our securities investments  may make it difficult to liquidate our securities portfolio at favorable prices and, as a result, we 
may suffer losses.  
We have historically invested in the equity of companies whose securities are not publicly traded, and whose securities may be subject to legal and other restrictions on resale 
or otherwise be less liquid than publicly-traded securities. As of November 30, 2011, approximately 61% of our investments were invested in illiquid securities. The illiquidity 
of these investments may make it difficult for us to sell these investments when desired. In addition, we may realize significantly less than the value at which we had 
previously recorded these investments when we liquidate our securities portfolio. The illiquidity of most of our securities investments may make it difficult for us to dispose of 
them at favorable prices, and, as a result, we may suffer losses.  

If our acquisitions do not meet our performance exp ectations, you may not receive distributions.  
We intend to make distributions on a quarterly basis to our stockholders out of assets legally available for distribution. We may not be able to achieve operating results that 
will allow us to make distributions at a specific level or to increase the amount of these distributions from time to time. Also, restrictions and provisions in any credit facilities 
we enter into or debt securities we issue may limit our ability to make distributions. We cannot assure you that you will receive distributions at a particular level or at all.  

If we were deemed an investment company under the I nvestment Company Act of 1940, applicable restrictio ns could make it impractical for us to 
continue our business as contemplated and could hav e a material adverse effect on our business and the  price of our securities.  
We do not believe that we are an “investment company” under the 1940 Act. If during the period in which we are liquidating our securities portfolio we make an investment in 
securities, or one of our infrastructure real property asset acquisitions were characterized as an investment in securities, we could be deemed as an investment company for 
purposes of the 1940 Act. If we were to be deemed an investment company, however, restrictions imposed by the 1940 Act, including limitations on our capital structure, 
could make it impractical for us to continue our business as contemplated and would have a material adverse effect on our operations and the price of our common shares.  

Changes in laws or regulations or in the interpretat ions of laws or regulations could significantly aff ect our operations and cost of doing business.  
We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations and are subject to judicial and administrative decisions that affect our operations, including loan originations, 
maximum interest rates, fees and other charges, disclosures to portfolio companies, the terms of secured transactions, collection and foreclosure procedures and other trade 
practices. If these laws, regulations or decisions change, we may have to incur significant expenses in order to comply, or we may have to restrict our operations. In addition, if 
we do not comply with applicable laws, regulations and decisions, or fail to obtain licenses that may become necessary for the conduct of our business; we may be subject to 
civil fines and criminal penalties, any of which could have a material adverse effect upon our business, results of operations or financial condition.  

Provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law a nd our charter and bylaws could deter takeover atte mpts and have an adverse impact on the 
price of our common shares.  
The Maryland General Corporation Law and our charter and bylaws contain provisions that may have the effect of discouraging, delaying or making difficult a change in 
control of our company or the removal of our incumbent directors.  

We are subject to the Business Combination Act of the Maryland General Corporation Law which prohibits certain business combinations between a Maryland corporation 
and an interested stockholder or their affiliate. As permitted by law, however, our Board of Directors has adopted a resolution exempting us from the Maryland Business 
Combination Act for any business combination between us and any person to the extent that such business combination receives the prior approval of our Board.  

The Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act generally provides that a holder of control shares of a Maryland corporation acquired in a control share acquisition has no voting 
rights except to the extent approved by a vote of two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter. Shares owned by a person who makes a proposal to make a control 
share acquisition and by  
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officers or by directors who are employees of the corporation are excluded from shares entitled to vote on the matter. Our Bylaws exempt from the Maryland Control Share 
Acquisition Act acquisitions of stock by any person. If we amend our Bylaws to repeal the exemption from the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act, the Maryland Control 
Share Acquisition Act also may make it more difficult to obtain control of the Company.  

Under our charter, our Board of Directors is divided into three classes serving staggered terms, which will make it more difficult for a hostile bidder to acquire control of us. In 
addition, our Board of Directors may, without stockholder action, authorize the issuance of shares of stock in one or more classes or series, including preferred stock. Our 
Board of Directors may, without stockholder action, amend our charter to increase the number of shares of stock of any class or series that we have authority to issue. The 
existence of these provisions, among others, may have a negative impact on the price of our common shares and may discourage third party bids for ownership of our 
Company. These provisions may prevent any premiums being offered to you for our common shares.  

Risks Related to an Investment in the U.S. Energy Infr astructure Sector  

Our focus on the energy infrastructure sector will subject us to more risks than if we were broadly di versified.  
Because we specifically focus on the energy infrastructure sector, investments in our common shares may present more risks than if we were broadly diversified over 
numerous sectors of the economy. Therefore, a downturn in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector would have a larger impact on us than on a company that does not concentrate 
in one sector of the economy. The energy infrastructure sector can be significantly affected by the supply of and demand for specific products and services; the supply and 
demand for crude oil, natural gas, and other energy commodities; the price of crude oil, natural gas, and other energy commodities; exploration, production and other capital 
expenditures; government regulation; world and regional events and economic conditions.  

Energy infrastructure companies are subject to vari ations in the supply and demand of various energy c ommodities.  
A decrease in the production of natural gas, natural gas liquids, crude oil, coal, refined petroleum products or other such commodities, or a decrease in the volume of such 
commodities available for transportation, mining, processing, storage or distribution, may adversely impact the financial performance of companies in the energy infrastructure 
sector. Production declines and volume decreases could be caused by various factors, including catastrophic events affecting production, depletion of resources, labor 
difficulties, political events, OPEC actions, environmental proceedings, increased regulations, equipment failures and unexpected maintenance problems, failure to obtain 
necessary permits, unscheduled outages, unanticipated expenses, inability to successfully carry out new construction or acquisitions, import supply disruption, increased 
competition from alternative energy sources or related commodity prices. Alternatively, a sustained decline in demand for such commodities could also adversely affect the 
financial performance of companies in the energy infrastructure sector. Factors that could lead to a decline in demand include economic recession or other adverse economic 
conditions, higher fuel taxes or governmental regulations, increases in fuel economy, consumer shifts to the use of alternative fuel sources, changes in commodity prices or 
weather. Factors that could lead to a decrease in market demand include a recession or other adverse economic conditions, an increase in the market price of the underlying 
commodity, higher taxes or other regulatory actions that increase costs, or a shift in consumer demand for such products. Demand may also be adversely impacted by 
consumer sentiment with respect to global warming and/or by any state or federal legislation intended to promote the use of alternative energy sources such as bio-fuels, solar 
and wind. Should energy infrastructure companies experience variations in supply and demand as described above, the resulting decline in operating or financial performance 
could impact the value or quality of our assets.  

Many companies in the energy infrastructure sector are subject to the risk that they, or their custome rs, will be unable to replace depleted reserves 
of energy commodities.  
Many companies in the energy infrastructure sector are either (i) engaged in the production of natural gas liquids, refined petroleum products, or aggregates such as crushed 
stone, sand and gravel, or (ii) are engaged in transporting, storing, distributing and processing these items on behalf of producers. To maintain or grow their revenues, many 
customers of these companies need to maintain or expand their reserves through exploration of new sources of supply, through the development of existing sources, through 
acquisitions, or through long-term contracts to acquire reserves. The financial performance of companies in the energy infrastructure sector may be adversely affected if the 
companies to which they provide service are unable to cost-effectively acquire additional reserves sufficient to replace the natural decline.  

Energy infrastructure companies are and will be sub ject to extensive regulation because of their parti cipation in the energy infrastructure sector.  
Companies in the energy infrastructure sector are subject to significant federal, state and local government regulation in virtually every aspect of their operations, including 
how facilities are constructed, maintained and operated, environmental and safety controls, and the prices they may charge for the products and services they provide. Various 
governmental authorities have the power to enforce compliance with these regulations and the permits issued under them, and violators are subject to administrative, civil and 
criminal penalties, including civil fines, injunctions or both. Stricter laws, regulations or enforcement policies could be enacted in the future that likely would increase 
compliance costs and may adversely affect the financial performance of companies in the energy infrastructure sector.  
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Energy infrastructure companies are and will be sub ject to the risk of fluctuations in commodity price s.  
The operations and financial performance of companies in the energy infrastructure sector may be directly affected by energy commodity prices, especially those companies in 
the energy infrastructure sector owning the underlying energy commodity. Commodity prices fluctuate for several reasons, including changes in market and economic 
conditions, the impact of weather on demand or supply, levels of domestic production and imported commodities, energy conservation, domestic and foreign governmental 
regulation and taxation and the availability of local, intrastate and interstate transportation systems. Volatility of commodity prices, which may lead to a reduction in 
production or supply, may also negatively impact the performance of companies in the energy infrastructure sector that are solely involved in the transportation, processing, 
storing, distribution or marketing of commodities. Volatility of commodity prices may also make it more difficult for companies in the energy infrastructure sector to raise 
capital to the extent the market perceives that their performance may be tied directly or indirectly to commodity prices. Historically, energy commodity prices have been 
cyclical and exhibited significant volatility. Should energy infrastructure companies experience variations in supply and demand as described above, the resulting decline in 
operating or financial performance could impact the value or quality of our assets.  

Energy infrastructure companies are and will be sub ject to the risk of extreme weather patterns.  
Extreme weather patterns, such as prolonged or abnormal seasons, or specific events, such as hurricanes, could result in significant volatility in the supply of energy and 
power. This volatility may create fluctuations in commodity prices and earnings of companies in the energy infrastructure sector. Moreover, any extreme weather events, such 
as hurricanes, could adversely impact the assets and valuation of our real property assets or investment securities.  

Additional Risks to Common Stockholders  

Our use of leverage increases the risk of investing  in our securities and will increase the costs born e by common stockholders.  
Our use of leverage through the issuance of any preferred stock or debt securities, and any additional borrowings or other transactions involving indebtedness (other than for 
temporary or emergency purposes) are or would be considered “senior securities” and create risks. Leverage is a speculative technique that may adversely affect common 
stockholders. If the return on securities acquired with borrowed funds or other leverage proceeds does not exceed the cost of the leverage, the use of leverage could cause us to 
lose money.  

Our issuance of senior securities involves offering expenses and other costs, including interest payments, which are borne indirectly by our common stockholders. Fluctuations 
in interest rates could increase interest or dividend payments on our senior securities, and could reduce cash available for distribution on common stock. Increased operating 
costs, including the financing cost associated with any leverage, may reduce our total return to common stockholders.  

Rating agency guidelines applicable to any senior securities may impose asset coverage requirements, dividend limitations, voting right requirements (in the case of the senior 
equity securities), and restrictions on our portfolio composition and our use of certain investment techniques and strategies. The terms of any senior securities or other 
borrowings may impose additional requirements, restrictions and limitations that are more stringent than those required by a rating agency that rates outstanding senior 
securities. These requirements may have an adverse effect on us and may affect our ability to pay distributions on common stock and preferred stock. To the extent necessary, 
we may redeem our senior securities to maintain the required asset coverage. Doing so may require that we liquidate investments at a time when it would not otherwise be 
desirable to do so.  

In addition, lenders from whom we may borrow money or holders of our debt securities may have fixed dollar claims on our assets that are superior to the claims of our 
stockholders, and we have granted, and may in the future grant, a security interest in our assets in connection with our debt. In the case of a liquidation event, those lenders or 
note holders would receive proceeds before our stockholders. If the value of our assets increases, then leveraging would cause the net asset value attributable to our common 
shares to increase more than it otherwise would have had we not leveraged. Conversely, if the value of our assets decreases, leveraging would cause the net asset value 
attributable to our common shares to decline more than it otherwise would have had we not leveraged. Similarly, any increase in our revenue in excess of interest expense on 
our borrowed funds would cause our net income to increase more than it would without the leverage. Any decrease in our revenue would cause our net income to decline more 
than it would have had we not borrowed funds and could negatively affect our ability to make distributions on our common shares. Our ability to service any debt that we incur 
will depend largely on our financial performance and the performance of our portfolio companies and will be subject to prevailing economic conditions and competitive 
pressures.  

Sales of our common stock may put pressure on our s tock price.  
The sale of our common stock (or the perception that such sales may occur) may have an adverse effect on prices in the secondary market for our common stock. An increase 
in the number of common shares available may put downward pressure on the market price for our common stock and make it more difficult for stockholders to sell their 
shares. These sales also might make it more difficult for us to sell additional equity securities in the future at a time and price we deem appropriate.  
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Additional Risks to Senior Security Holders  

Generally, an investment in our senior securities is subject to the following risks:  

We will be subject to interest rate risk.  
Distributions and interest payable on our senior securities are subject to interest rate risk. To the extent that distributions or interest on such securities are based on short-term 
rates, our leverage costs may rise so that the amount of dividends or interest due to holders of senior securities would exceed available cash flow. To the extent that any of our 
leverage costs are fixed, our leverage costs may increase when our senior securities mature. This might require us to sell investments at a time when we would otherwise not 
do so, which may affect adversely our future ability to generate cash flow.  

Preferred stock will be junior to any outstanding n otes or other borrowings.  
Preferred stock will be junior in liquidation and with respect to distribution rights to debt securities and any other borrowings.  

Senior securities representing indebtedness may constitute a substantial lien and burden on preferred stock by reason of their prior claim against our income and against our net 
assets in liquidation. We may not be permitted to declare dividends or other distributions with respect to any series of preferred stock unless at such time we meet applicable 
asset coverage requirements and the payment of principal or interest is not in default with respect to any notes or other borrowings.  

Our debt securities, upon issuance, are expected to be unsecured obligations and, upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, will rank: (1) senior to all of our outstanding 
common stock and any outstanding preferred stock; (2) on a parity with any of our unsecured creditors and any unsecured senior securities representing our indebtedness; and 
(3) junior to any of our secured creditors. Secured creditors of ours may include, without limitation, parties entering into interest rate swap, floor or cap transactions, or other 
similar transactions with us that create liens, pledges, charges, security interests, security agreements or other encumbrances on our assets.  

We may be subject to ratings and asset coverage ris k.  
To the extent that senior securities are rated, a rating does not eliminate or necessarily mitigate the risks of investing in our senior securities, and a rating may not fully or 
accurately reflect all of the credit and market risks associated with a security. A rating agency could downgrade the rating of our shares of preferred stock or debt securities, 
which may make such securities less liquid at an auction or in the secondary market, though probably with higher resulting interest rates. If a rating agency downgrades, or 
indicates a potential downgrade to, the rating assigned to a senior security, we may alter our portfolio or redeem a portion of our senior securities. We may voluntarily redeem 
a senior security under certain circumstances to the extent permitted by its governing documents.  

Inflation may negatively impact our senior securiti es.  
Inflation is the reduction in the purchasing power of money resulting from an increase in the price of goods and services. Inflation risk is the risk that the inflation adjusted or 
“real” value of an investment in preferred stock or debt securities or the income from that investment will be worth less in the future. As inflation occurs, the real value of the 
preferred stock or debt securities and the dividend payable to holders of preferred stock or interest payable to holders of debt securities declines.  

Additional Risks Related to Warrants and Subscription Rights  

An active public market for our warrants or subscrip tion rights may not develop.  
Currently, no public market exists for our warrants or for subscription rights we may issue. We cannot assure you that one will develop. We do not currently intend to apply to 
list the warrants, and may not list any subscription rights, on any national securities exchange or automated quotation system.  

There may be dilution of the value of our common sh ares when our warrants or subscription rights are e xercised or if we issue common shares 
below book value.  
The issuance of additional common shares upon the exercise of any warrants or subscription rights, if the warrants or subscription rights are exercised at a time when the 
exercise price is less than the book value per share of our common shares will have a dilutive effect on the value of our common shares.  

The warrants or subscription rights may have no val ue in bankruptcy.  
In the event a bankruptcy or reorganization is commenced by or against us, a bankruptcy court may hold that unexercised warrants or subscription rights are executory 
contracts subject to rejection by us with approval of the bankruptcy court. As a result, holders of warrants or subscription rights may, even if sufficient funds are available, not 
be entitled to receive any consideration or may receive an amount less than they would be entitled to if they had exercised their warrants or subscription rights prior to the 
commencement of any such bankruptcy or reorganization.  

As a holder of warrants or subscription rights, you will not receive distributions on our common stock.   
Holders of warrants or subscription rights will not have the right to receive any distributions and will not have any voting rights so long as their warrants or subscription rights 
are unexercised.  
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS  
On September 21, 2011, we filed with the SEC a universal shelf registration statement on Form S-3. We received comments from the SEC staff on the filing on October 17, 
2011. Some of those comments related to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2010 (the “10-K”) and our Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended May 31, 
2011 (the “10-Q”). On November 18, 2011, we filed Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the shelf registration statement and responded to those comments. On December 12, 
2011, we received comments from the SEC staff on Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1, some of which related to the previously issued comments on our 10-K and 10-Q. On 
January 25, 2012, we filed Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2. to the shelf registration statement and responded to all open comments. As of the date of this annual report the 
shelf registration statement has not yet been declared effective and a few of the comments relating to the 10-K and 10-Q remain unresolved. We do not believe the comments 
are material and expect them to be resolved soon. However, there can be no assurance on the timing of resolution of such comments.  

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES  
We own 100 percent of a 40 percent undivided interest in the Eastern Interconnect Project (“EIP”). The EIP transmission assets move electricity across New Mexico between 
Albuquerque and Clovis. The physical assets include 216 miles of 345 kilovolts transmission lines, towers, easement rights, converters and other grid support components.  

We hold 100 percent of the equity interests in Mowood. Mowood is the holding company of Omega Pipeline, LLC (“Omega”). Omega is a natural gas local distribution 
company located on the Fort Leonard Wood military installation in south-central Missouri. Omega owns approximately 50 miles of pipeline, has a long term contract with the 
Department of Defense and serves the natural gas needs of Fort Leonard Wood in addition to marketing natural gas services to several customers in the surrounding area.  

Our principal executive office is located at 4200 W. 115th Street, Suite 210, Leawood, Kansas 66211.  

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS  
We are not currently subject to any material legal proceedings, nor, to our knowledge, is any material legal proceeding threatened against us.  

ITEM 4. [REMOVED AND RESERVED]  
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PART II  

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’ S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES O F EQUITY 
SECURITIES  
Price Range of Common Stock  

Our common shares began trading on the NYSE under the symbol “TTO” on February 2, 2007 at a price of $15.00 per share. Prior to our initial public offering, there was no 
public market for our common shares.  

The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices of our common shares and the distributions declared by us for each fiscal quarter for our two most recent 
fiscal years:  

 

The last reported price for our common stock as of December 31, 2011 was $8.06 per share. As of December 31, 2011, we had 27 stockholders of record.  

Dividend Policy  

Our investments in securities and real property assets generate cash flow to us from which we expect to pay distributions to stockholders. The Board of Directors will 
determine the amount of any distribution we expect to pay our stockholders. A REIT is generally required to distribute during the taxable year an amount equal to at least 90% 
of the REIT taxable income (determined under IRC section 857(b)(2), without regard to the deduction for dividends paid). We intend to adhere to this requirement in order to 
qualify as a REIT.  

Taxation of our Distributions  

If we elect to be treated as a REIT, we will be required to make distributions, other than capital gain distributions, to our stockholders each year in the amount of at least 90% 
of our REIT taxable income. We have historically paid, and intend to continue to pay, subject to adjustment at the discretion of our Board of Directors, quarterly distributions 
to our stockholders. Our Board of Directors will determine the amount of each distribution. Because of the effect of other items, including depreciation and amortization 
associated with real estate investments, distributions, in whole or in part, in any period may constitute a return of capital for federal tax purposes. On February 6, 2012, our 
Board of Directors declared a $0.11 per share distribution to be paid on March 1, 2012 to stockholders of record on February 22, 2012. There is no assurance that we will 
continue to make regular distributions.  

Taxation  

Currently, as a corporation, we are obligated to pay federal and state income tax on our taxable income. Our tax expense or benefit is included in our Consolidated Statements 
of Operations. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes 
and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Based on current information, we believe we have sufficient net operating losses or other tax attributes to offset any potential 
tax expense in 2011. If we find sufficient suitable REIT-qualifying investments during 2012 and satisfy the REIT requirements throughout 2012, we expect to make an 
election to be treated as a REIT throughout 2012 by filing a Form 1120-REIT on or before March 15, 2013, or such later date to which we have properly extended filing such 
return. If we elect REIT status in the future, we will be taxed as a REIT rather than a C corporation and generally will not pay federal  
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NAV/ Price Range Cash Distribution 

2010       Book Value (1)       High       Low       per Share (2) 

First quarter   $      9.60   $      7.58 $      6.00   $      0.1300 
Second quarter $ 8.69 $ 7.93 $ 5.27 $ 0.1000 
Third quarter $ 9.74 $ 6.44 $ 5.10 $ 0.1000 
Fourth quarter $ 10.44 $ 7.42 $ 5.40 $ 0.1000 

  
2011 

First quarter $ 10.46 $ 8.55 $ 6.79 $ 0.1000 
Second quarter $ 10.66 $ 9.27 $ 8.17 $ 0.1000 
Third quarter $ 10.62 $ 9.02 $ 7.41 $ 0.1000 

Fourth quarter (1) $ 9.85 $ 8.38 $ 6.59 $ 0.1100 

(1) By withdrawing our election to be regulated as a BDC, we are no longer regulated by the 1940 Act. Our prospective reporting will conform to other commonly used processes of REITs. The primary visibility 
of this reporting will be the decreased emphasis on fair value based NAV to traditional historical cost based accounting of book value. This reporting does not change the strategy of holding our private 
investments until an attractive liquidity opportunity is presented. In line with our intent and the change in our business during the fourth quarter 2011, book value per share is shown in place of NAV, and 
reflects the impact of consolidating the operations of Mowood as opposed to reporting it at fair value as in the prior periods presented. Net asset value and book value per share is generally determined as of 
the last day in the relevant period and therefore may not reflect the net asset value or book value per share on the date of the high and low sales prices. The net asset values and book value shown are 
based on outstanding shares at the end of each period.  

(2) Represents the distribution declared in the specified period.  



 

income tax on taxable income that is distributed to our stockholders. Currently, our distributions from earnings and profits are treated as qualified dividend income (“QDI”) 
and return of capital, with dividends received by corporate shareholders generally qualifying for the dividends received deduction (“DRD”). If we elect REIT status, our 
distributions from earnings and profits will be treated as ordinary income and generally will not qualify as QDI and will not be qualifying for purposes of the DRD. As a REIT, 
certain dividends related to long term capital gains may be taxed as capital gains dividends. If we make a REIT election, we will be subject to a corporate level tax on certain 
built-in gains on certain assets if such assets are sold during the 10 year period following conversion. Built-in gain assets are assets whose fair market value exceeds the 
REIT’s adjusted tax basis at the time of conversion. In addition, a REIT may not have any earnings and profits accumulated in a non-REIT year. Thus, upon conversion to a 
REIT, the putative REIT is generally required to distribute to its stockholders all accumulated earnings and profits, if any. Such distribution would be taxable to the 
stockholders as dividend income, and, as discussed above, may qualify as qualified dividend income for non-corporate stockholders and for the dividends received deduction 
for corporate stockholders.  

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities  

We did not sell any securities during the year ended November 30, 2011 that were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933.  

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities  

We did not repurchase any shares of our common stock during the year ended November 30, 2011.  

Performance Graphs  

The following graph compares the return on our common stock (“TTO”) with that of the Wachovia MLP Total Return Index (“WMLPT”) and a BDC Peer Group (“BDC 
Peers”), for the period February 2, 2007 to November 30, 2011. The graph assumes that, on February 2, 2007, a $100 investment was made in each of our common stock, 
WMLPT and the BDC Peers, and assumes the reinvestment of all cash dividends. The comparisons in the graph below are based on historical data and are not intended to 
forecast future performance of our common stock.  

  

   

 

As a result of the Company’s withdrawal of its election to be regulated as a BDC and the anticipated liquidation of the securities portfolio, the performance comparable group 
has also been revised from that shown above to reflect a more appropriate set of benchmarks. As the Company intends to be treated as a REIT in the future, and is changing its 
focus to the acquisition of real property energy infrastructure assets that are leased backed to operating companies such as utilities or other energy operators, it was determined 
that the FTSE NAREIT Equity REIT Index (“FTSE NAREIT”), the Dow Jones Utilities Average Index (“DJ UTIL”), and the S&P 500 (“SPX”) are a more relevant set of 
indices. The graph assumes that, on February 2, 2007, a $100 investment was made in each of our common stock, FTSE NAREIT and the SPX, and assumes the reinvestment 
of all cash dividends. The comparisons in the graph below are based on historical data and are not intended to forecast future performance of our common stock.  
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(1) Our shares began trading on the NYSE on February 2, 2007. 
(2) The BDC Peer Group consists of the following closed-end investment companies that have elected to be regulated as business development companies under the 1940 Act: 

        American Capital Strategies Firsthand Technology Value Keating Capital Inc. PennantPark Floating Rate 
Ameritrans Capital Corp. Full Circle Capital Corp. Kohlberg Capital Corp. PennantPark Investment Corp 
Apollo Investment Corp. Gladstone Capital Corp. Main Street Capital Corp. Prospect Capital Corp. 
Ares Capital Corporation Gladstone Investment Corp. MCG Capital Corp. Saratoga Investment Corp. 
Blackrock Kelso Capital Corp. Golub Capital BDC Inc. Medallion Financial Corp. Solar Capital Ltd. 
Capital Southwest Corp. GSV Capital Corp. Medley Capital Corp. Solar Senior Capital Ltd. 
Equus Total Return Harris & Harris Group Inc. MVC Capital THL Credit Inc. 
Fidus Investment Group Hercules Tech Growth Capital NGP Capital Resources Co. TICC Capital 
Fifth Street Finance Corp. Horizon Technology Finance Oxford Lane Capital Corp. Triangle Capital Corp. 



 

  

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA  
The selected financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and 
the financial statements and related notes included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the 
Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mowood, LLC (“Mowood”). See Note 2B in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further disclosure. Financial 
information presented below for the years ended November 30, 2011, November 30, 2010, November 30, 2009, November 30, 2008 and November 30, 2007 has been derived 
from our financial statements audited by Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm. The historical data is not necessarily indicative of results to 
be expected for any future period.  

Results of operations for the year ended November 30, 2011 and the financial position at November 30, 2011 reflect the consolidation of the Company’s wholly-owned 
subsidiary, Mowood, LLC, effective September 21, 2011.  
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(1) Our shares began trading on the NYSE on February 2, 2007. 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year En ded 

November 30, November 30, November 30, November 30,  November 30, 

      2011       2010       2009       2008       2007 

Income statement data: 
Sales revenue $ 2,161,723 $ — $ — $ — $ —

Lease income 1,063,740 — — — —

       Total revenue 3,225,463 — — — —

Cost of sales 1,689,374 — — — —

Management fees, net of expense reimbursements (1) 968,163 925,820 1,126,327 1,620,498 2,139,489 

All other expenses (2) 2,038,347 972,556 1,539,486 2,688,550 2,902,561 

       Total expenses 4,695,884 1,898,376 2,665,813 4,309,048 5,042,050 

Income (loss) from operations, before income taxes (1,470,421 ) (1,898,376 )       (2,665,813 ) (4,309,048 ) (5,042,050 ) 

Deferred tax benefit (expense), net 557,017 708,217 313,024 1,235,185 1,594,610 

Income (loss) from operations (913,404 ) (1,190,159 ) (2,352,789 ) (3,073,863 ) (3,447,440 ) 

Realized and unrealized gain (loss) on securities 

       transactions, before income taxes     4,583,748 19,446,071 1,126,632         (32,864,923 ) 10,822,178 
Distributions and income from investments, net 651,673   1,853,247 1,743,017 2,914,966   3,034,944 

Other income 40,000 38,580       61,514 28,987 —

       Total other income (loss), before income taxes 5,275,421           21,337,898 2,931,163   (29,920,970 )         13,857,122 
Current and deferred tax benefit (expense), net       (1,439,874 ) (5,480,865 ) (567,380 ) 8,624,600 (5,265,706 ) 

Total other income 3,835,547 15,857,033 2,363,783   (21,296,370 ) 8,591,416 

       Net income (loss) $ 2,922,143 $ 14,666,874 $ 10,994 $ (24,370,233 ) $ 5,143,976 

Per common share data: 
Distributions to common stockholders (4) $ 0.41 $ 0.43 $ 0.62 $ 1.04 $ 0.67 
Earnings per common share: 

       Basic and diluted $ 0.32 $ 1.61 $ 0.00 $ (2.74 ) $ 0.66 
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November 30, November 30, November 30, November 30,  November 30, 

      2011       2010       2009       2008       2007 

Balance sheet data: 
Securities investments   $      68,894,372 $      93,736,230 $      82,483,094 $      105,790,858 $      158,416,831 
Leased property, net 13,832,540   —   —  — —
Property and equipment, net   3,842,675   —  — —   —

Other assets 7,717,809 2,305,163 6,994,959   6,530,199   757,489 

     Total assets $ 94,287,396 $ 96,041,393 $ 89,478,053 $ 112,321,057 $ 159,174,320 

  
Long-term debt 2,279,883 — — — —

Other liabilities 1,581,200 562,220 5,181,468 23,095,757 37,261,354 

     Total liabilities 3,861,083 562,220 5,181,468 23,095,757 37,261,354 

Total stockholders’ equity $ 90,426,313 $ 95,479,173 $ 84,296,585 $ 89,225,300 $ 121,912,966 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 94,287,396 $ 96,041,393 $ 89,478,053 $ 112,321,057 $ 159,174,320 

  
(1) Management fee analysis for the years ending: 

            Nov 30, 2011       Nov 30, 2010       Nov 30, 2009       Nov 30, 2008       Nov 30, 2007 

Gross Management Fees    $      1,452,245    $      1,233,823    $      1,351,593    $      2,313,731    $      1,926,059 

  Capital Gain Incentive Fees Payable   — — —    (307,611 )     307,611   
Expense Reimbursements (484,092 )   (308,003 )     (225,266 ) (385,622 ) (94,181 ) 

       Net Management Fees $ 968,163 $ 925,820   $ 1,126,327 $ 1,620,498   $ 2,139,489 

  
The payable for capital gain incentive fees is a result of the increase or decrease in the fair value of investments and realized gains or losses from investments. Pursuant to the Investment Advisory 
Agreement, the capital gain incentive fee is paid annually only if there are realization events and only if the calculation defined in the agreement results in an amount due. No capital gain incentive fees have 
been due or payable since the commencement of operations. 

(2) Other expense analysis for the years ending: 

        Nov 30, 2011       Nov 30, 2010       Nov 30, 2009       Nov 30, 2008       Nov 30, 2007 

Operating Expenses $      1,363,654    $         926,937    $         911,779    $      1,037,624    $      1,094,677 

  Asset Acquisition Expenses 638,185 — — — —

Interest Expense 36,508 45,619 627,707 1,650,926 847,421 

Loss on Redemption of Preferred Stock — — — — 228,750 

Preferred Stock Distributions — — — — 731,713 

       Total Other Expenses $ 2,038,347 $ 972,556 $ 1,539,486 $ 2,688,550 $ 2,902,561 

The Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock issuance in December 2006 was utilized as bridge financing to fund portfolio investments and was fully redeemed upon completion of our initial public offering in 
February 2007. Other expenses do not include current and deferred income taxes. 

(3) For the year ended November 30, 2007, the Company had unrealized appreciation of $10,561,888 (before deferred taxes) and realized gains of $260,290 (before deferred taxes). The unrealized appreciation 
was primarily attributable to increases in fair value of the Company’s private portfolio companies and the realized gains were attributable to a sale of a small percent of the Company’s interest in High Sierra 
Energy GP, LLC. 
For the year ended November 30, 2008, the Company had unrealized depreciation of $41,581,120 (before deferred taxes) and realized gains of $8,716,197 (before deferred taxes). The unrealized 
depreciation was triggered by write-downs of the Company’s public and private portfolio holdings; generally resulting from the broad, global economic recession, major institution failures and bailouts and the 
accompanying collapse of most major asset class valuations in the latter part of the year. The realized gains were attributable to the LONESTAR and Millennium realization events and VantaCore debt 
redemption. 
For the year ended November 30, 2009, the Company had unrealized appreciation of $24,247,380 (before deferred taxes) and realized losses of $23,120,748 (before deferred taxes). The unrealized 
appreciation was driven by increased fair values of portfolio holdings resulting from a significant rebound in the MLP sector from the downturn in late 2008. During the credit crisis of 2008 and 2009, access to 
credit through the bank market became more restrictive and expensive. During that time, the Company was not able to renew its credit facility and liquidated a portion of its portfolio holdings in order to pay 
off the credit facility, resulting in the recognition of realized losses. 
For the year ended November 30, 2010, the Company had unrealized appreciation of $30,564,590 (before deferred taxes) and realized losses of $11,118,519 (before deferred taxes). The unrealized 
appreciation was driven by primarily by an increase in the fair value of its private holdings, most notably Internal Resource Partners which increased approximately $18 million during the year. Quest 
Midstream Partners completed its transformation into a publicly traded C-corp, PostRock Energy Corp. (NASDAQ: PSTR) in March 2010. PSTR was a new corporation formed for the purpose of wholly 
owning all three Quest entities. Upon closing of the merger, the Company received nearly half a million freely tradable common units of PSTR in exchange for its common units of Quest Midstream. 
Subsequently, the stock price declined significantly and the Company sold its units in an orderly liquidation, resulting in the recognition of realized losses. 

(4) The character of distributions made during the year may differ from the ultimate characterization for federal income tax purposes. For the year ended November 30, 2011, the Company’s distributions for tax 
purposes were comprised of 100 percent investment income and the source of the distributions for book purposes was 100 percent return of capital. For the year ended November 30, 2010, the Company’s 
distributions, for book and tax purposes, were comprised of 100 percent return of capital. For the year ended November 30, 2009, the Company’s distributions, for book and tax purposes, were comprised of 
100 percent return of capital. For the year ended November 30, 2008, the Company’s distributions, for book purposes, were comprised of 100 percent return of capital, and for tax purposes were comprised 
of 3.2 percent investment income and 96.8 percent return of capital. For the year ended November 30, 2007, the Company’s distributions, for book and tax purposes, were comprised of 100 percent return of 
capital. 



 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITIO N AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  
All statements contained herein, other than historical facts, constitute “forward-looking statements.” These statements may relate to, among other things, future events or our 
future performance or financial condition. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “might,” “believe,” “will,”
“provided,” “anticipate,” “future,” “could,” “growt h,” “plan,” “intend,” “expect,” “should,” “would,” “if,” “seek,” “possible,” “potential,” “likely” or the negative of 
such terms or comparable. These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of 
activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any anticipated results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such 
forward-looking statements. For a discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ from forward-looking statements contained herein, please see the 
discussion under the heading “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A. of this report.  

We may experience fluctuations in our operating results due to a number of factors, including the return on our equity investments, the interest rates payable on our debt 
investments, the default rates on such investments, the level of our expenses, variations in and the timing of the recognition of realized and unrealized gains or losses, the 
degree to which we encounter competition in our markets and general economic conditions. As a result of these factors, results for any period should not be relied upon as 
being indicative of performance in future periods.  

Performance Review  

Our stock price increased approximately 7.1 percent this year, closing at $7.80 on November 30, 2011 compared to $7.28 on November 30, 2010. This contributed to a total 
investment return based on market value and assuming reinvestment of distributions of approximately 12.6 percent for the year ended November 30, 2011. The fair value of 
our investment securities, excluding cash equivalents, was approximately $68.9 million at November 30, 2011, with approximately $41.9 million in private securities and 
approximately $27.0 million in publicly-traded securities.  

Results of Operations  

Comparison of the Years Ended November 30, 2011, Nov ember 30, 2010 and November 30, 2009  

Revenue:  
Revenue for the year ended November 30, 2011 was $3,225,463. This represents sales revenue from our wholly owned subsidiary, Mowood, for the period from September 
21, 2011 through November 30, 2011 as well as lease income from our Public Service Company of New Mexico investment during the year. Our Public Service Company of 
New Mexico investment was made in June 2011 and the results of Mowood’s operations were consolidated for the period from September 21, 2011 through November 30, 
2011 and, thus, there are no comparable revenues for the years ended November 30, 2010 and November 30, 2009. Amounts related to our investment securities previously 
reported as revenue in prior periods are now reflected below Income (Loss) from Operations. Investment income as presented in our 2010 10-K is now reflected in the line 
items “Distributions and income from investments, net” and “other income.” As we do not plan to make additional investments in securities (other than short term, highly 
liquid investments to be held pending acquisition of real property assets) and intend to liquidate our securities portfolio in an orderly manner, investments are no longer 
considered part of our operations, consistent with our intentions to invest in real property assets which can be leased.  

Other Income:  
Other income represents our earnings on our portfolio of trading securities and other equity securities that are reported at fair value under the fair value option. Other income 
for the year ended November 30, 2011 totaled $3,835,547. This represents a decrease of $12,021,486 as compared to total other income of $15,857,033 for the year ended 
November 30, 2010. The decrease is due to lower realized and unrealized gains on our securities portfolio and lower securities distributions and dividends received. Other 
income for the year ended November 30, 2010 reflected an increase of $13,493,250 as compared to total other income of $2,363,783 for the year ended November 30, 2009. 
The increase was primarily due to higher realized and unrealized gains on our securities portfolio.  

The following table shows the gross income received from our investment securities on a cash basis, less the amounts that were comprised of return of capital:  
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Year Ended Year Ended Year 

November 30, November 30, November 30, 

      2011       2010       2009 

Income received from investment securities   $ 3,568,128 $ 4,917,451   $ 8,534,411 

Less return of capital on distributions         (2,916,455 )           (3,064,204 )       (6,791,394 ) 

      Income received from investment securities, net $ 651,673   $ 1,853,247 $ 1,743,017 



 

The increase in expenses from 2010 to 2011 was primarily related to cost of sales and other operating expenses of our consolidated wholly owned subsidiary, Mowood, 
reflected for the period from September 21, 2011 through November 30, 2011 and costs pertaining to our asset acquisition in June 2011 and related depreciation expense that 
was recognized during the year ended November 30, 2011. The decrease in expenses from the year ended November 30, 2009 to the year ended November 30, 2010 is 
primarily attributed to lower base management fees due to a decrease in the fair value of our securities portfolio, an increase in the expense reimbursement by the Adviser, and 
significantly lower leverage costs.  

Net Income: Net income for the year ended November 30, 2011 was $2,922,143, compared to $14,666,874 and $10,994 for the years ended November 30, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively. The variance in net income is related to the changes in revenue and expenses as described above.  

Distributions: The following table sets forth distributions for the three years ended November 30, 2011, November 30, 2010 and November 30, 2009.  

 

Private Company Update  

High Sierra Energy, LP and High Sierra Energy, GP (“Hi gh Sierra”)  
High Sierra’s fair value increased approximately $4.2 million since November 30, 2010. In March 2011, High Sierra closed on a new $215 million, 3-year committed senior 
secured credit facility led by BNP Paribas. The new facility financed the buyout of High Sierra’s minority partners at Anticline Disposal, resulting in High Sierra owning 100 
percent of the membership interests of that business. In June 2011, High Sierra completed the sale of its 70 percent owned subsidiary, Monroe Gas Storage Company, LLC 
(“Monroe”), which operates a natural gas storage facility in northeastern Mississippi, to Cardinal Gas Storage Partners LLC. High Sierra also acquired the assets of Marcum 
Midstream 1995-2 Business Trust and Marcum Midstream 1995-EC Holdings, LLC (collectively “Marcum”). The company continues to divest of its non-core assets and 
during the fourth quarter completed the sale of Asgard Energy. High Sierra did not make cash distributions to its LP and GP unit holders during our first two fiscal quarters of 
the year. In the third quarter, High Sierra returned to paying cash distributions at $0.15 per unit and increased the per unit payout to $0.30 in our fourth quarter. In the coming 
year we expect High Sierra to maintain its current level of cash distributions with modest room for growth.  

Lightfoot Capital Partners LP and Lightfoot Capital  Partners GP LLC (“Lightfoot”)  
In June 2011, we purchased an 8.2 percent ownership interest in Magnetar MLP Investment, LP (“Magnetar MLP”) for net consideration of $9.9 million. The Magnetar MLP 
investment represented an indirect investment into Lightfoot Capital Partners, LP (“Lightfoot”), which owned 83.5 percent of the outstanding limited partner units of Arc 
Terminals LP (“Arc”) and 100 percent of Arc Terminals GP, which also included a 2.0 percent limited partnership interest. At the time of investment, Lightfoot also held 
approximately $60 million in cash available for new investments. Arc provides storage and delivery services for petroleum, petrochemical and chemical products to customers 
under long-term storage and throughput contracts. In October 2011, Magnetar MLP sold a substantial portion of its interest in Lightfoot Capital Partners LP and Lightfoot 
Capital Partners GP to provide liquidity to certain original investors in the fund. As part of this transaction we elected to receive direct ownership interests in Lightfoot Capital 
Partners, LP (6.72%) and Lightfoot Capital Partners GP LLC (1.52%). Immediately following this transaction LCP invested its remaining cash in a minority interest in a 
Liquefied Natural Gas facility located in Mississippi. The decrease in value since August 31, 2011 (approximately $500,000) was due in large part to the anticipated expenses 
of potential acquisitions and capital market events in the coming year. The addition of the LNG facility and LCP’s existing refined product storage assets should provide for 
growing distributions in the future.  
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Expenses: 
Year Ended Amount                        Year Ended                        Amount 

November 30, 2011 $  4,695,884 November 30, 2010   $ 1,898,376   
November 30, 2010 1,898,376   November 30, 2009     2,665,813   
Variance $     2,797,509 Variance $ (767,437 ) 

Period        Amount                        Period        Amount                         Period        Amount 

2011 2010   2009   
Fourth Quarter   $ 0.1100   Fourth Quarter   $ 0.1000 Fourth Quarter   $ 0.1300 
Third Quarter $ 0.1000 Third Quarter   $ 0.1000   Third Quarter $ 0.1300 
Second Quarter $ 0.1000 Second Quarter $ 0.1000 Second Quarter $ 0.1300 
First Quarter $ 0.1000 First Quarter $ 0.1300 First Quarter $ 0.2300 



 

VantaCore Partners LP (“VantaCore”)  
VantaCore’s fair value decreased approximately $7.2 million since November 30, 2010. VantaCore was unable to meet its minimum quarterly cash distribution (“MQD”) 
throughout this past year. Common and preferred unitholders elected to receive a small percentage of the MQD in cash with the remainder paid in newly issued preferred units. 
VantaCore reported year-to-date EBITDA below budget, with the Southern Aggregates property in Louisiana continuing to fall short. In August 2011, VantaCore completed 
its acquisition of Cherry Grove Quarry in Todd County, Kentucky and a milling machine. We invested an additional $1.2 million in VantaCore in August 2011 in exchange for 
newly issued Preferred B units to provide a portion of the funding needed for the acquisition. Although VantaCore has done a better job of meeting expectations, we continue 
to lower our EBITDA expectations for 2012 due to the economic outlook in our territories which contributed to the reduction in fair value for VantaCore, particularly in the 
fourth quarter. We do believe that the fair value of VantaCore will ultimately increase as the construction and housing markets improve, although the timing and extent of such 
improvement in unknown. Until that time, VantaCore continues to look for small acquisitions and operational improvements at its existing facilities.  

Mowood, LLC (“Mowood”) — Wholly Owned Subsidiary  
As a result of our withdrawal to be regulated as a BDC, we no longer prepare our financials as an investment company but rather as a general corporate entity and therefore 
began consolidating the operations of Mowood in the fourth quarter 2011. Lincoln Partners Advisors, LLC (an independent valuation firm) prepared a positive assurance 
valuation of our Mowood equity investment as of November 30, 2011 even though the valuation is unaudited and not used as the carrying value in the consolidated financial 
statements. The resulting valuation increased slightly from that which was reported last quarter. In 2012 we expect Mowood to meet and slightly exceed 2011 EBITDA.  

Below is a summary of the fair values of the other equity securities that we held at November 30, 2011 as they compare to the fair values at November 30, 2010.  

 

Basis of Presentation  

The consolidated financial statements include Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation and its wholly-owned portfolio company, Mowood, LLC (“Mowood”). All significant 
intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.  

Critical Accounting Policies  
   
The financial statements included in this report are based on the selection and application of critical accounting policies, which require management to make significant 
estimates and assumptions. Critical accounting policies are those that are both important to the presentation of our financial condition and results of operations and require 
management’s most difficult, complex or subjective judgments. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, recognition of distribution 
income and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Note 2 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in this report, further details information related to our significant accounting policies.  

Investment Securities  
Our investments in securities are classified as either trading or other equity securities:  

� Trading securities — our publicly traded equity securities are classified as trading securities and are reported at fair value because we intend to sell these securities in 
order to acquire real asset investments.  
   

� Other equity securities represent interests in private companies for which we have elected to report these at fair value under  the fair value option.  

Securities transactions are accounted for on the date the securities are purchased or sold (trade date). Realized gains and losses are reported on an identified cost basis.  

Our investment securities are primarily in illiquid securities of privately-held companies that are generally subject to restrictions on resale, have no established trading market 
and are fair valued on a quarterly basis. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the fair values of such securities, which are determined in accordance with procedures 
approved by our Board of Directors, may differ materially from the values that would have been used had a ready market existed for the investments.  
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      Fair Value at       Fair Value at 

Portfolio Company November 30, 2011 November 30, 2010 

High Sierra $     25,512,814 $     21,268,843 
Lightfoot   9,536,390   N/A 
VantaCore 6,750,526   13,968,319 
Lonestar 57,000 245,000 



 

Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles  
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets 
ranging from five to twenty years. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred, and improvements, which extend the useful lives of assets, 
are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining estimated useful life of the asset.  

We initially record long-lived assets at their acquisition cost, unless the transaction is accounted for as a business combination. If the transaction is accounted for as a business 
combination, we allocate the purchase price to the acquired tangible and intangible assets and liabilities based on their estimated fair values. We determine the fair values of 
assets and liabilities based on discounted cash flow models using current market assumptions, appraisals, recent transactions involving similar assets or liabilities and/or other 
objective evidence, and depreciates the asset values over the estimated remaining useful lives.  

In connection with these transactions, we may acquire long-lived assets that are subject to an existing lease contract with the seller or other lessee party and we may assume 
outstanding debt of the seller as part of the consideration paid. If, at the time of acquisition, the existing lease or debt contract is not at current market terms, we will record an 
asset or liability at the time of acquisition representing the amount by which the fair value of the lease or debt contract differs from its contractual value. Such amount is then 
amortized over the remaining contract term as an adjustment to the related lease revenue or interest expense.  

Revenue Recognition  
Specific policies for our revenue and other income items are as follows:  

� Sales Revenue — Omega, acting as a principal, provides for transportation services and natural gas supply for its customers on a firm basis. In addition, Omega is paid 
fees for the operation and maintenance of its pipeline, including expansion of the pipeline. Omega is responsible for the coordination, supervision and quality of the 
expansions while actual construction is generally performed by third party contractors. Revenues related to natural gas distribution are recognized upon delivery of 
natural gas and upon the substantial performance of management and supervision services related to the expansion of the natural gas distribution system.  
   

� Dividends and distributions from investments — Dividends and distributions from investments are recorded on their ex-dates and are reflected as other income within 
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. Distributions received from our investments generally are comprised of ordinary income, capital gains and 
return of capital. We record investment income, capital gains and return of capital based on estimates made at the time such distributions are received. Such estimates 
are based on information available from each company and/or other industry sources. These estimates may subsequently be revised based on information received from 
the entities after their tax reporting periods are concluded, as the actual character of these distributions is not known until after our fiscal year end.  
   

� Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on trading securities and other equity securities — Changes in the fair values of the Company’s securities during the period 
reported and the gains or losses realized upon sale of securities during the period are reflected as other income within the accompanying Consolidated Statements of 
Income.  
   

� Lease Income — Income related to our leased property is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease when collectability is reasonably assumed. 
Rental payments on the leased property are typically received on a semi-annual basis and are included as lease income within the accompanying Consolidated 
Statements of Income.  

Cost of Sales  
Included in our cost of sales are the amounts paid for gas and propane that are delivered to customers as well as the cost of material and labor related to the expansion of the 
natural gas distribution system.  

Federal and State Income Taxation  
Currently, as a corporation, we are obligated to pay federal and state income tax on our taxable income. Our tax expense or benefit is included in the Consolidated Statements 
of Operations. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes 
and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Based on current information, we believe we have sufficient net operating losses or other tax attributes to offset any potential 
significant tax expense in 2011.  

If we elect REIT status in the future, we will be taxed as a REIT rather than a C corporation and generally will not pay federal income tax on taxable income that is distributed 
to our stockholders. Before withdrawal of the BDC election, our distributions from earnings and profits were treated as qualified dividend income (“QDI”) and return of 
capital. Following the withdrawal, and assuming we subsequently elect REIT status, our distributions from earnings and profits will be treated as ordinary income and 
generally will not qualify as QDI. If we do not elect or do not qualify as a REIT, with respect to years prior to 2013, our distributions would continue to be treated as QDI and 
return of capital. Thereafter, under existing law, our distributions would be treated as ordinary income and return of capital.  
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Liquidity and Capital Resources  
   
We entered into a 180-day rolling evergreen margin loan facility with Bank of America, N.A. on November 30, 2011. The terms of the agreement provide for a $10,000,000 
facility that is secured by certain of our assets. Outstanding balances generally will accrue interest at a variable rate equal to one-month LIBOR plus 0.75 percent and unused 
portions of the facility will accrue a fee equal to an annual rate of 0.25 percent.  

On October 29, 2011, Mowood entered into a revolving note payable with a financial institution with a maximum borrowing base of $1,250,000. Borrowings on the note are 
secured by all of Mowood’s assets. Interest accrues at LIBOR, plus a 400 percent margin (4.25 percent at November 30, 2011), is payable monthly, with all outstanding 
principal and accrued interest payable on October 29, 2012. There are no outstanding borrowings under this agreement at November 30, 2011. The agreement contains various 
restrictive covenants, with the most significant relating to minimum consolidated fixed charge ratio, the incidence of additional indebtedness, member distributions, extension 
of guaranties, future investments in other subsidiaries and change in ownership.  

On January 25, 2012, we filed an amendment to our shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission. When effective, the universal 
shelf registration will allow us to prudently raise additional capital. While we have had the ability to utilize various forms of leverage — including a credit facility, senior notes 
and other borrowings, as well as preferred stock — historically, we have only been able to access leverage at attractive costs through a credit facility. During the credit crisis of 
late 2008 and 2009, access to credit through the bank market became more restrictive and expensive. During that time, we were not able to renew our credit facility and we 
liquidated a portion of our portfolio holdings in order to repay the credit facility in full. We believe lenders are more reluctant to lend against equity investments in private 
companies than to entities that invest in real assets. Consistent with our initial investment strategy, we intend to utilize leverage to enhance the total returns of our portfolio.  

We expect to have greater flexibility in issuing securities with common equity participation features (such as warrants and convertible notes) and/or additional classes of stock 
(such as convertible preferred) in order to facilitate capital formation now that we are no longer subject to the restrictions of the 1940 Act. We also hold publicly listed MLPs 
which can be liquidated in order to fund future acquisitions. We expect to hold our private investments until a natural liquidity event is presented to each company.  

Contractual Obligations  
   
The following table summarizes our significant contractual payment obligations as of November 30, 2011.  

 

Eastern Interconnect Project Investment (“EIP”)  
   
The Company’s investment in EIP is leased under net operating leases with various terms. As of November 30, 2011, approximately 100 percent of the Company’s leased 
property, based on the gross book value of real estate investments, was leased to Public Service Company of New Mexico (“PNM”). PNM is referred to as the Major Tenant. 
Approximately 33 percent of the Company’s total revenue for the year ended November 30, 2011 was derived from the Major Tenant.  

In view of the fact that the Major Tenant leases a substantial portion of the Company’s net leased property which is a significant source of revenues and operating income, its 
financial condition and ability and willingness to satisfy its obligations under its lease with the Company, have a considerable impact on the results of operation and the 
Company’s ability to service its indebtedness.  

The Major Tenant is currently subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is required to file with the SEC annual reports 
containing audited financial statements and quarterly reports containing unaudited financial statements. The audited financial statements and unaudited financial statements of 
the Major Tenant can be found on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. The Company makes no representation as to the accuracy or completeness of the audited and unaudited 
financial statements of the Major Tenant but has no reason not to believe the accuracy or completeness of such information. In addition, the Major Tenant has no duty, 
contractual or otherwise, to advise the Company of any events that might have occurred subsequent to the date of such financial statements which could affect the significance 
or accuracy of such information. None of the information in the public reports of the Major Tenant that are filed with the SEC is incorporated by reference into, or in any way 
form part of this filing.  
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Payments due by period       
More than 

      Total       Less than 1 year       1-3 years       3-5 years       5 years 

Long-term Debt (1)   $     2,188,000 $     2,188,000 $ —  $ — $ —

Operating Lease Obligations 107,550   79,908   27,642          —         —

$    2,295,550 $    2,267,908 $     27,642 $ — $ —

  

(1) At November 30, 2011, the principal balance outstanding on the debt assumed in the Eastern Interconnect Project was $2,188,000. Principal payments will be made on a semi-annual basis through the 
maturity date of October 1, 2012. 



 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  
   
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial 
condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures, or capital resources.  

Strategy  
   
In 2007, 2009 and 2010 the IRS issued three separate private letter rulings that defined certain energy infrastructure assets as real estate assets for tax purposes. The potential 
qualifying real estate assets in the energy infrastructure sector are electric transmission and distribution systems, pipeline systems and storage systems and systems used to 
transfer substances between modes of transportation, also known as terminaling systems. We refer to such REIT-qualifying assets herein as “real property assets.” While 
private letter rulings provide insight into the current thinking of the IRS on tax issues, such rulings may only be relied upon by the taxpayer to whom they were issued.  

We do not plan to make additional investments in securities (other than short-term, highly liquid investments to be held pending acquisition of real property assets) and intend 
to liquidate our securities portfolio in an orderly manner. If we find sufficient suitable REIT-qualifying investments during 2012 and satisfy the REIT requirements throughout 
2012, we expect to make an election to be treated as a REIT for tax purposes for 2012 by filing a Form 1120-REIT on or before March 15, 2013,or such later date to which we 
have properly extended filing such income tax return. The REIT requirements that we must meet are discussed in detail below, but the principal challenge for us will be 
meeting the requirement that a substantial percentage of our assets be REIT-qualifying investments that produce REIT qualifying income. Our effort to meet that requirement 
will be accelerated if: (i) we are able to readily identify appropriate opportunities to liquidate our securities portfolio, or (ii) we are able to raise capital to fund new 
acquisitions. In either event, we will need to have identified and be able to consummate an adequate number of REIT-qualifying investments meeting our investment criteria. 
Subject to certain limitations, we may be able to accelerate satisfying the REIT requirements by holding non-REIT qualifying investments, including certain private equity 
investments, through taxable REIT subsidiaries. We do not currently have any agreements or binding letters of intent for such investments. These opportunities are in a 
preliminary stage of review, and consummation of any of these opportunities depends on a number of factors beyond our control. There can be no assurance that any of these 
acquisition opportunities will result in consummated transactions. Regardless of our tax status, an investment in us will not result in Unrelated Business Taxable Income 
(“UBTI”).  

Performance Measurement  

In the past, we have provided investors with a measure of cash flow from operations, labeled distributable cash flow. Prospectively we intend to provide standard performance 
measures utilized by REITs including Funds from Operations (“FFO”) and Adjusted Funds from Operations (“AFFO”).  

As defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”), FFO represents net income, plus depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments 
for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. It was intended to be a standard supplemental measure of REIT operating performance that excluded historical cost 
depreciation from — or “added it back” to — GAAP net income. Since introduction of the definition, the term has come to be widely used by REITs.  

AFFO is another non-GAAP metric which makes adjustments for certain non-operating and non-cash items included in the calculation of FFO such as impairment charges, 
acquisition fees and mark to market adjustments. We believe that AFFO allows securities analysts, investors and other interested parties to evaluate current period results to 
results prior to acquisitions.  

Our objective is to maximize long-term value for shareholders. To achieve this goal, we target annualized total returns of 8 to 10 percent from our current operations and assets 
that we acquire over the long term. There is no assurance that our targets will be met in any particular period.  

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RI SK  
Our business activities contain elements of market risk. We consider fluctuations in the value of our securities portfolio to be our principal market risk. There were no material 
changes to our market risk exposure at November 30, 2011 as compared to November 30, 2010.  

Our equity and debt securities are reported at fair value in the current period, as determined by our Board of Directors. The fair value of securities is determined using readily 
available market quotations from the principal market if available. The fair value of securities that are not publicly traded or whose market price is not readily available is 
determined in good faith by our Board of Directors. Because there are no readily available market quotations for many of the securities in our portfolio, we value a large 
portion of our securities at fair value as determined in good faith by our Board of Directors under a valuation policy and a consistently applied valuation process. Due to the 
inherent uncertainty of determining the fair value of securities that do not have readily available market quotations, the fair value of our securities may differ significantly from 
the fair values that would have been used had a ready market quotation existed for such securities, and these differences could be material.  
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As of November 30, 2011, the fair value of our securities portfolio (excluding short-term investments) totaled $68,894,372. We estimate that the impact of a 10 percent 
increase or decrease in the fair value of these securities, net of related deferred taxes, would increase or decrease net assets applicable to common stockholders by 
approximately $4,297,631.  

Debt securities in our portfolio may be based on floating or fixed rates. As of November 30, 2011, we had no floating rate debt outstanding.  

We consider the management of risk essential to conducting our businesses. Accordingly, our risk management systems and procedures are designed to identify and analyze 
our risks, to set appropriate policies and limits and to continually monitor these risks and limits by means of reliable administrative and information systems and other policies 
and programs.  

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA  
Our financial statements and financial statement schedules are set forth beginning on page F-1 in this Annual Report and are incorporated herein by reference.  

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING  AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE  
None.  

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES  
Our management is responsible for the preparation, consistency, integrity, and fair presentation of the financial statements. The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis and, in management’s opinion, are fairly presented. The financial statements 
include amounts that are based on management’s informed judgments and best estimates.  

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company. Our management has established and 
maintains comprehensive systems of internal control that provide reasonable assurance as to the consistency, integrity, and reliability of the preparation and presentation of 
financial statements and the safeguarding of assets. The concept of reasonable assurance is based upon the recognition that the cost of the controls should not exceed the 
benefit derived. Our management monitors the systems of internal control and maintains an internal auditing program that assesses the effectiveness of internal control. Our 
management assessed our disclosure controls and procedures and our systems of internal control over financial reporting for financial presentations in conformity with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles. This assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO Report).  

Based on this assessment, our management believes we maintained effective systems of internal control that provided reasonable assurance as to adequate design and effective 
operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and that the Company’s systems of internal control over financial reporting for financial presentations in conformity with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles as of November 30, 2011.  

The Board of Directors exercises its oversight role with respect to the systems of internal control primarily through its Audit and Valuation Committee, which is comprised 
solely of independent outside directors. The Committee oversees systems of internal control and financial reporting to assess whether their quality, integrity, and objectivity 
are sufficient to protect shareholders’ investments.  

Ernst & Young has issued an audit report on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. This report begins on the next page.  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

The Board of Directors and Shareholders  
Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation  

We have audited Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation’s 
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included 
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.  

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to 
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.  

In our opinion, Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2011, based 
on the COSO criteria.  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Tortoise 
Capital Resources Corporation (the Company) as of November 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income, equity, and cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended November 30, 2011 and our report dated February 13, 2012, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.  

 

Kansas City, Missouri  
February 13, 2012  
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Oversight and Monitoring  

As part of our internal control processes; we monitor, on an ongoing basis, compliance by tenants with their lease obligations and other factors that could affect the financial 
performance of any of our properties. Monitoring involves receiving assurances that each tenant has paid real estate taxes, assessments and other expenses relating to the 
properties it occupies and confirming that appropriate insurance coverage is being maintained by the tenant. We review financial statements of tenants and undertake regular 
physical inspections of the condition and maintenance of properties. Additionally, we periodically analyze each tenant’s financial condition, the industry in which each tenant 
operates and each tenant’s relative strength in its industry. In addition, monitoring may be accomplished by attendance at Board of Directors meetings, the review of periodic 
operating and financial reports, an analysis of capital expenditure plans as they relate to the owned assets, and periodic consultations with engineers, geologists and other 
experts. The performance of each asset will be periodically compared to performance of similarly sized companies with comparable assets and businesses to assess 
performance relative to peers. Other monitoring activities are expected to provide the necessary access to monitor compliance with existing covenants, enhance ability to make 
qualified valuation decisions, and assist in the evaluation of the nature of the risks involved in the various components of the portfolio.  

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION  
None.  
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PART III  

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
Codes of Ethics  

We have adopted a code of ethics which applies to our principal executive officer and principal financial officer. We have also adopted a code of ethics that establishes 
procedures for personal investments and restricts certain personal securities transactions. Personnel subject to the code of ethics may invest in securities for their personal 
investment accounts, including securities that may be purchased or held by us, so long as such investments are made in accordance with the code of ethics. This information 
may be obtained, without charge, upon request by calling us at (913) 981-1020 or toll-free at (866) 362-9331 and on our Web site at www.tortoiseadvisors.com/tto.cfm.  

You may also read and copy the codes of ethics at the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C. You may obtain information on 
the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the Securities and Exchange Commission at (800) SEC-0330. In addition, the codes of ethics are available on the 
EDGAR Database on the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Internet site at http://www.sec.gov. You may obtain copies of the codes of ethics, after paying a duplicating 
fee, by electronic request at the following email address: publicinfo@sec.gov, or by writing the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Public Reference Section, Washington, 
D.C. 20549.  

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”) imposes a wide variety of regulatory requirements on publicly-held companies and their insiders. The Sarbanes-
Oxley Act requires us to review our policies and procedures to determine whether we comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder. We 
will continue to monitor our compliance with all future regulations that are adopted under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and will take actions necessary to ensure that we are in 
compliance therewith.  

As of November 30, 2011, we are an accelerated filer. As an accelerated filer for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2011, we are required to prepare and include in our 
annual report to stockholders for such period a report regarding management’s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 (the “1934 Act”) and have included this report in Item 9A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  

Additional information incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2012 Annual Stockholder Meeting to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.  

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION  
Incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2012 Annual Stockholder Meeting to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the 
end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.  

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGE MENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS  
Incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2012 Annual Stockholder Meeting to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the 
end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.  

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECT OR INDEPENDENCE  
Incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2012 Annual Stockholder Meeting to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the 
end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.  

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES  
Incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2012 Annual Stockholder Meeting to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the 
end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.  
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PART IV  

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES  
The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:  

 

 

All other exhibits for which provision is made in the applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instruction or are 
inapplicable and therefore have been omitted.  
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1. The Financial Statements listed in the Index to Financial Statements on Page F-1. 
            

2. The Exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index below. 

Exhibit 

No.       Description of Document 

3.1   Articles of Incorporation (1) 

  
3.2   Bylaws (2) 

  
4.1   Form of Stock Certificate (3) 

  
4.2   Form of Warrant dated December 2006 (3) 

  
4.3   Registration Rights Agreements with Merrill Lynch & Co; Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, and Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, 

Incorporated dated January 9, 2006 (1) 

  
4.4   Registration Rights Agreement dated April 2007 (4) 

  
10.1   Dividend Reinvestment Plan (5) 

  
10.2   Management Agreement dated December 1, 2011 (6) 

  
10.3   Advisory Agreement dated December 1, 2011 (6) 

  
10.4   Custody Agreement with U.S. Bank National Association dated September 13, 2005 (1) 

  
10.5   First Amendment to the Custody Agreement with U.S. Bank National Association dated May 24, 2010 — filed herewith 

  
10.6   Stock Transfer Agency Agreement with Computershare Investor Services, LLC dated September 13, 2005 (1) 

  
10.7   Second Amended Administration Agreement dated December 1, 2011 (6) 

  
10.8   Warrant Agreement with Computershare Investor Services, LLC as Warrant Agent dated December 8, 2005 (1) 

  
14.1   Code of Ethics for Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer—filed herewith. 

  
24   Power of Attorney (included on the signature page) 

  
31.1   Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 

2002—filed herewith. 
  

31.2   Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002—filed herewith. 

  
32.1   Certification by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the 

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002—filed herewith. 

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-2, filed August 28, 2006 (File No. 333-136923). 
(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s current report on Form 8-K, filed January 21, 2009. 
(3) Incorporated by reference to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-2, filed January 9, 2007 (File No. 333-136923). 
(4) Incorporated by reference to Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-2, filed July 3, 2007 (File No. 333-142859). 
(5) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2007 and filed on October 12, 2007. 
(6) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s current report on Form 8-K, filed December 1, 2011. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

The Board of Directors and Shareholders  
Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation (the Company) as of November 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related 
consolidated statements of income, equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended November 30, 2011. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation 
at November 30, 2011 and 2010, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended November 30, 2011, in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation’s internal 
control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 13, 2012, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.  

 

Kansas City, Missouri  
February 13, 2012  
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

 
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation 

November 30, 2011 November 30, 2010 

Assets             
     Trading securities, at fair value $        27,037,642 $        20,806,821 
     Other equity securities, at fair value 41,856,730 72,929,409 
     Leased property, net of accumulated depreciation of $294,309 13,832,540 —
     Cash and cash equivalents 2,793,326 1,466,193 
     Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $1,483,616 3,842,675 —
     Escrow receivable 1,677,052 —
     Accounts receivable 1,402,955 —
     Intangible lease asset, net of accumulated amortization of $121,641 973,130 —
     Lease receivable 474,152 —
     Prepaid expenses 140,017 25,023 
     Receivable for Adviser expense reimbursement 121,962 109,145 
     Interest receivable — 42,778 
     Deferred tax asset 27,536 656,743 

     Other assets 107,679 5,281 

      Total Assets 94,287,396 96,041,393 

  
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 
Liabilities 
     Management fees payable to Adviser 365,885 327,436 
     Accounts payable 597,157 —
     Long-term debt 2,279,883 —
     Lease obligation 107,550 —

     Accrued expenses and other liabilities 510,608 234,784 

     Total Liabilities 3,861,083 562,220 

  
Stockholders’ Equity 
     Warrants, no par value; 945,594 issued and outstanding 
          at November 30, 2011 and November 30, 2010 
          (5,000,000 authorized) $ 1,370,700 $ 1,370,700 
     Capital stock, non-convertible, $0.001 par value; 9,176,889 shares issued 
          and outstanding at November 30, 2011 and 9,146,506 shares issued 
          and outstanding at November 30, 2010 (100,000,000 shares authorized) 9,177 9,147 
     Additional paid-in capital 95,682,738 98,444,952 

     Accumulated deficit (6,636,302 ) (4,345,626 ) 

      Total Stockholders’ Equity $ 90,426,313 $ 95,479,173 

      Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 94,287,396 $ 96,041,393 

  
      Book value per share (total stockholders’ equity div ided by  
          shares outstanding) $ 9.85 $ 10.44 



 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME  

 
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation 

Year Ended  

November 30, 2011       
Year Ended  

November 30, 2010       
Year Ended  

November 30, 2009 

Revenue 
     Sales Revenue $ 2,161,723 $ — $ —

     Lease income 1,063,740 — —

           Total Revenue 3,225,463 — —

  
Expenses 
     Cost of sales 1,689,374 — —
     Management fees, net of expense reimbursements 968,163 925,820 1,126,327 
     Asset acquisition expense 638,185 — —
     Professional fees 548,759 590,486 553,856 
     Depreciation expense 364,254 — —
     Operating expenses 196,775 — —
     Directors’ fees 70,192 92,053 90,257 
     Interest expense 36,508 45,619 627,707 

     Other expenses 183,674 244,398 267,666 

           Total Expenses 4,695,884 1,898,376 2,665,813 

  
Loss from Operations, before Income Taxes        (1,470,421 )        (1,898,376 )        (2,665,813 ) 

     Deferred tax benefit 557,017 708,217 313,024 

Loss from Operations (913,404 ) (1,190,159 ) (2,352,789 ) 

  
Other Income 
     Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on trading securities 2,299,975 (894,531 ) 144,723 
     Net realized and unrealized gain on other equity securities 2,283,773 20,340,602 981,909 
     Distributions and dividend income, net 651,673 1,853,247 1,743,017 

     Other income 40,000 38,580 61,514 

Total Other Income, before Income Taxes 5,275,421 21,337,898 2,931,163 

     Current tax expense (253,650 ) — —

     Deferred tax expense (1,186,224 ) (5,480,865 ) (567,380 ) 

          Income tax expense, net (1,439,874 ) (5,480,865 ) (567,380 ) 

Total Other Income 3,835,547 15,857,033 2,363,783 

  
Net Income $ 2,922,143 $ 14,666,874 $ 10,994 

  
Earnings Per Common Share: 
     Basic and Diluted $ 0.32 $ 1.61 $ 0.00 

  
Weighted Average Shares of Common Stock Outstanding: 
     Basic and Diluted 9,159,809 9,107,070 8,997,145 



 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY  

 
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation 

Additional Retained Earnings 

Capital Stock Paid-in (Accumulated 

Shares    Amount    Warrants    Capital    Deficit)    Total 

Balance at December 1, 2008    8,962,147 $ 8,962 $ 1,370,700 $ 106,869,132 $ (19,023,494 ) $ 89,225,300 
Net Income 10,994 10,994 
Distributions to stockholders sourced 
     as return of capital (5,582,473 ) (5,582,473 ) 
Reinvestment of distributions 

     to stockholders 115,943 116 642,648 642,764 

Balance at November 30, 2009 9,078,090 9,078 1,370,700 101,929,307 (19,012,500 ) 84,296,585 

Net Income 14,666,874 14,666,874 
Distributions to stockholders sourced 
     as return of capital (3,915,124 ) (3,915,124 ) 
Reinvestment of distributions 

     to stockholders 68,416 69 430,769 430,838 

Balance at November 30, 2010 9,146,506 9,147 1,370,700 98,444,952 (4,345,626 ) 95,479,173 

Net Income 2,922,143 2,922,143 
Distributions to stockholders sourced 
     as return of capital (3,755,607 ) (3,755,607 ) 
Reinvestment of distributions 
     to stockholders 30,383 30 252,212 252,242 
Consolidation of wholly-owned 

     subsidiary 741,181 (5,212,819 ) (4,471,638 ) 

Balance at November 30, 2011 9,176,889 $   9,177 $   1,370,700 $   95,682,738 $   (6,636,302 ) $   90,426,313 



 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

 
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  

Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation 

    
Year Ended  

November 30, 2011 
      

Year Ended  

November 30, 2010 
      

Year Ended  

November 30, 2009 

Operating Activities 
     Net Income $ 2,922,143 $ 14,666,874 $ 10,994 
          Adjustments: 
               Return of capital on distributions received 2,845,434 3,064,204 6,791,394 
               Deferred income tax expense, net 629,207 4,772,648 254,356 
               Depreciation expense 364,254 — —
               Amortization of intangible lease asset 121,641 — —
               Amortization of assumed debt premium (94,611 ) — —
               Realized and unrealized (gain) loss on trading securities (2,299,975 ) 894,531 (144,723 ) 
               Realized and unrealized (gain) loss on other  
                    equity securities (2,283,773 ) (20,340,602 ) (981,909 ) 
               Changes in assets and liabilities: 
                    (Increase) decrease in interest, dividend and  
                         distribution receivable 42,778 (42,774 ) 77,218 
                    Decrease in lease receivable 237,077 — —
                    Increase in accounts receivable (92,473 ) — —
                    Decrease in income tax receivable — — 212,054 
                    Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses  
                         and other assets 70,109 (13,429 ) 91,004 
                    Increase (decrease) in management fees  
                         payable to Adviser, net of 
                         expense reimbursement 25,632 (30,926 ) (195,410 ) 
                    Increase in accounts payable 236,579 — —
                    Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses  
                         and other liabilities 38,424 (47,625 ) (79,874 ) 

     Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,576,222 $ 2,922,901 $ 6,035,104 

  
Investing Activities 
          Purchases of long-term investments (38,060,281 ) (10,633,882 ) (6,669,391 ) 
          Proceeds from sales of long-term investments 53,950,583 15,762,612 24,312,558 
          Cash paid in business combination (12,250,000 ) — —

          Purchases of property and equipment (1,045 ) — —

     Net cash provided by investing activities $ 3,639,257 $ 5,128,730 $ 17,643,167 

  
Financing Activities 
          Payments on long-term debt (1,221,000 ) — —
          Payments on lease obligation (44,816 ) — —
          Advances from revolving line of credit — — 900,000 
          Repayments on revolving line of credit (400,000 ) (4,600,000 ) (18,500,000 ) 

          Distributions paid to common stockholders (3,503,365 ) (3,484,284 ) (4,939,797 ) 

     Net cash used in financing activities $ (5,169,181 ) $ (8,084,284 ) $ (22,539,797 ) 

  
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,232,522 $ (32,653 ) $ 1,138,474 
Consolidation of wholly-owned subsidiary 94,611 — —

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of year 1,466,193 1,498,846 360,372 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of year $ 2,793,326 $ 1,466,193 $ 1,498,846 

  
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information 
     Interest paid $ 176,595 $ 66,703 $ 674,245 
     Income taxes paid $ 253,650 $ — $ —
Non-Cash Financing Activities 
     Reinvestment of distributions by common stockholders 
          in additional common shares $ 252,242 $ 430,838 $ 642,764 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
November 30, 2011  

1. Organization  

Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation (the “Company”) was organized as a Maryland corporation on September 8, 2005. The Company completed its initial public offering 
in February 2007 as a non-diversified closed-end management investment company regulated as a business development company (“BDC”) under the Investment Company 
Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”). The Company withdrew its election to be treated as a BDC on September 21, 2011 in order to pursue qualification as a real estate 
investment trust (“REIT”). Historically as a BDC, the Company invested primarily in privately held companies operating in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector. The 
Company’s shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “TTO.”  

2. Significant Accounting Policies  

A. Use of Estimates — The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, recognition of distribution income and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

B. Basis of Presentation — The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mowood, LLC 
(“Mowood”). Mowood is the holding company for Omega Pipeline Company (“Omega”). Omega is a natural gas local distribution company that owns and operates a natural 
gas distribution system in Fort Leonard Wood, Missouri. Omega is responsible for purchasing and coordinating delivery of natural gas to Fort Leonard Wood as well as 
performing maintenance and expansion of the pipeline. In addition, Omega provides gas marketing services to local commercial end users. All significant inter-company 
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  

Consolidation of Mowood was triggered at the time the Company withdrew its election to be treated as a BDC (September 21, 2011) and began reporting its financial results in 
accordance with general corporate reporting guidelines instead of under the AICPA Investment Company Audit Guide (the “Guide”). The accompanying consolidated 
financial statements reflect the results of the Company’s operations for the years ended November 30, 2009 and 2010 and the period from December 1, 2010 to September 21, 
2011, during which time the Company reported under the Guide, and therefore reported and accounted for Mowood as an investment carried at fair value. Subsequent to 
September 21, 2011, the Company ceased reporting under the Guide. The results of operations for Mowood for the period from September 21, 2011 to November 30, 2011 and 
related balances at November 30, 2011 are included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended November 30, 2011. Certain prior year 
balances have been reclassified to conform to the presentation required for general corporate entities and to provide comparability of financial results across reporting periods. 
The reclassification of account balances for prior years, which are summarized below, did not impact the Company’s financial position or reported net results of operations:  

� Investments at fair value, including securities of control, affiliated and non-affiliated companies, at November 30, 2010 have been reclassified as either trading or other 
equity securities.  
   

� Components of Stockholders’ Equity on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 30, 2010 have been combined. Accumulated net investment loss, net of 
income taxes of $(3,308,522), accumulated realized loss, net of income taxes of $(18,532,648), and net unrealized appreciation of investments, net of income taxes of 
$17,495,544 have been combined into Accumulated Deficit.  
   

� Items on the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended November 30, 2010 and 2009 have been reclassified and aggregated to conform to the presentation 
of the results of operations for the year ended November 30, 2011. However, there was no impact to net income or earnings per share. Income from investment 
securities are no longer considered to be part of the Company’s operations and therefore have been classified as Other Income.  
   

� Components of cash flows for the years ended November 30, 2010 and 2009 have been reclassified and aggregated to conform to the presentation of cash flows for the 
year ended November 30, 2011.  

C. Investment Securities — The Company’s investments in securities are classified as either trading or other equity securities:  

� Trading securities — the Company’s publicly traded equity securities are classified as trading securities and are reported at fair value because the Company intends to 
sell these securities in order to acquire real asset investments.  
   

� Other equity securities — the Company’s other equity securities represent interests in private companies for which the Company has elected to report these at fair value 
under the fair value option.  

D. Security Transactions and Fair Value — Security transactions are accounted for on the date the securities are purchased or sold (trade date). Realized gains and losses are 
reported on an identified cost basis.  
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For equity securities that are freely tradable and listed on a securities exchange or over-the-counter market, the Company fair values those securities at their last sale price on 
that exchange or over-the-counter market on the valuation date. If the security is listed on more than one exchange, the Company will use the price from the exchange that it 
considers to be the principal exchange on which the security is traded. Securities listed on the NASDAQ will be valued at the NASDAQ Official Closing Price, which may not 
necessarily represent the last sale price. If there has been no sale on such exchange or over-the-counter market on such day, the security will be valued at the mean between the 
last bid price and last ask price on such day.  

An equity security of a publicly traded company acquired in a private placement transaction without registration is subject to restrictions on resale that can affect the security’s 
liquidity and fair value. Such securities that are convertible into or otherwise will become freely tradable will be valued based on the market value of the freely tradable 
security less an applicable discount. Generally, the discount will initially be equal to the discount at which the Company purchased the securities. To the extent that such 
securities are convertible or otherwise become freely tradable within a time frame that may be reasonably determined, an amortization schedule may be used to determine the 
discount.  

The Company holds investments in illiquid securities including debt and equity securities of privately-held companies. These investments generally are subject to restrictions 
on resale, have no established trading market and are fair valued on a quarterly basis. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the fair values of such investments, 
which are determined in accordance with procedures approved by the Company’s Board of Directors, may differ materially from the values that would have been used had a 
ready market existed for the investments. The Company’s Board of Directors may consider other methods of valuing investments as appropriate and in conformity with 
GAAP.  

The Company determines fair value to be the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. The Company has determined the principal market, or the market in which the Company exits its private portfolio investments with the greatest volume 
and level of activity, to be the private secondary market. Typically, private companies are bought and sold based on multiples of EBITDA, cash flows, net income, revenues, 
or in limited cases, book value.  

For private company investments, value is often realized through a liquidity event of the entire company. Therefore, the value of the company as a whole (enterprise value) at 
the reporting date often provides the best evidence of the value of the investment and is the initial step for valuing the Company’s privately issued securities. For any one 
company, enterprise value may best be expressed as a range of fair values, from which a single estimate of fair value will be derived. In determining the enterprise value of a 
portfolio company, an analysis is prepared consisting of traditional valuation methodologies including market and income approaches. The Company considers some or all of 
the traditional valuation methods based on the individual circumstances of the portfolio company in order to derive its estimate of enterprise value.  

The fair value of investments in private portfolio companies is determined based on various factors, including enterprise value, observable market transactions, such as recent 
offers to purchase a company, recent transactions involving the purchase or sale of the equity securities of the company, or other liquidation events. The determined equity 
values may be discounted when the Company has a minority position, is subject to restrictions on resale, has specific concerns about the receptivity of the capital markets to a 
specific company at a certain time, or other comparable factors exist.  

The Board of Directors undertakes a multi-step valuation process each quarter in connection with determining the fair value of private investments. An independent valuation 
firm has been engaged by the Board of Directors to provide independent, third-party valuation consulting services based on procedures that the Board of Directors has 
identified and may ask them to perform from time to time on all or a selection of private investments as determined by the Board of Directors. The multi-step valuation process 
is specific to the level of assurance that the Board of Directors requests from the independent valuation firm. For positive assurance, the process is as follows:  

� The independent valuation firm prepares the preliminary valuations and the supporting analysis. At November 30, 2011, the independent valuation firm performed 
positive assurance valuation procedures on five portfolio companies comprising approximately 99.9 percent of the total fair value of other equity securities;  
   

� The investment professionals of the Adviser review the preliminary valuations and supporting analyses, and consider and assess, as appropriate, any changes that may 
be required to the preliminary valuations;  
   

� The Investment Committee of the Adviser reviews the preliminary valuations and supporting analyses, and considers and assesses, as appropriate, any changes that 
may be required to the preliminary valuations;  
   

� The Board of Directors assesses the final valuations and ultimately determines the fair value of each investment in the Company’s portfolio in good faith.  

The following section describes the valuation methodologies used by the Company for estimating fair value for financial instruments not recorded at fair value as required 
under disclosure guidance  
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related to the fair value of financial instruments.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents — The carrying value of cash, amounts due from banks, federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements approximates fair 
value.  

Escrow Receivable — The fair value of the escrow receivable due the Company, which relates to the sale of International Resource Partners, LP, will be released upon 
satisfaction of certain post closing obligations and/or the expiration of certain time periods (the shortest of which is 14 months from the April 2011 closing date of the sale).  

Long-term Debt — The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is calculated, for disclosure purposes, by discounting future cash flows by a rate equal to the Company’s 
current expected rate for an equivalent transaction.  

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are shown in the table below:  

 

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents — The Company maintains cash balances at financial institutions in amounts that regularly exceed FDIC insured limits. The Company’s cash 
equivalents are comprised of short-term, liquid money market instruments.  

F. Accounts Receivable — Accounts receivable are presented at face value net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts are considered past due based on the terms of 
sale with the customers. The Company reviews accounts for collectability based on an analysis of specific outstanding receivables, current economic conditions and past 
collection experience. Management determined that an allowance for doubtful accounts was not necessary at November 30, 2011.  

G. Revenue and Other Income Recognition — Specific policies for the Company’s revenue and other income items are as follows:  

� Sales Revenue — Omega, acting as a principal, provides for transportation services and natural gas supply for its customers on a firm basis. In addition, Omega is paid 
fees for the operation and maintenance of its pipeline, including expansion of the pipeline. Omega is responsible for the coordination, supervision and quality of the 
expansions while actual construction is generally performed by third party contractors. Revenues related to natural gas distribution are recognized upon delivery of 
natural gas and upon the substantial performance of management and supervision services related to the expansion of the natural gas distribution system.  
   

� Dividends and distributions from investments — Dividends and distributions from investments are recorded on their ex-dates and are reflected as other income within 
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. Distributions received from the Company’s investments generally are comprised of ordinary income, capital 
gains and return of capital. The Company records investment income, capital gains and return of capital based on estimates made at the time such distributions are 
received. Such estimates are based on information available from each company and/or other industry sources. These estimates may subsequently be revised based on 
information received from the entities after their tax reporting periods are concluded, as the actual character of these distributions is not known until after the fiscal year 
end of the Company.  
 
During the year ended November 30, 2011, the Company reallocated the amount of 2010 income and return of capital it recognized for the period from December 1, 
2009 through November 30, 2010 based on the 2010 tax reporting information received from the individual portfolio companies. This reclassification amounted to a 
decrease in pre-tax net income of approximately $422,000 or $0.046 per share ($263,000 or $0.029 per share, net of deferred tax benefit); an increase in net realized 
and unrealized gains on trading securities of approximately $47,000 or $0.005 per share ($29,000 or $0.003 per share, net of deferred tax expense) and a increase in net 
realized and unrealized gains on other equity securities of approximately $375,000 or $0.041 per share ($234,000 or $0.026 per share, net of deferred tax expense) for 
the year ended November 30, 2011.  
   

� Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on trading securities and other equity securities — Changes in the fair values of the Company’s securities during the period 
reported and the gains or losses realized upon sale of securities during the period are reflected as other income within the accompanying Consolidated Statements of 
Income.  
   

� Lease Income — Income related to the Company’s leased property is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease when collectability is reasonably 
assumed. Rental payments on the leased property are typically received on a semi-annual basis and are included as lease income within the accompanying Consolidated 
Statements of Income.  
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2011 2010 

Carrying Amount       Fair value             Carrying Amount       Fair value 

Financial assets 
     Cash and cash equivalents $     2,793,326 $     2,793,326   $     1,466,193 $     1,466,193 
     Escrow Receivable   1,677,052   1,677,052   — —
Financial Liabilities 
     Long-term debt 2,279,883 2,320,851 —   —



 

H. Cost of Sales — Included in the Company’s cost of sales are the amounts paid for gas and propane that are delivered to customers as well as the cost of material and labor 
related to the expansion of the natural gas distribution system.  

I. Distributions to Stockholders — The amount of any quarterly distributions to stockholders will be determined by the Board of Directors. Distributions to stockholders are 
recorded on the ex-dividend date. The character of distributions made during the year may differ from their ultimate characterization for federal income tax purposes. For the 
years ended November 30, 2011, November 30, 2010 and November 30, 2009, the source of the Company’s distributions for book purposes was 100 percent return of capital. 
For the year ended November 30, 2011, the Company’s distributions for tax purposes were comprised of 100 percent qualified dividend income. For the years ended 
November 30, 2010 and November 30, 2009, the Company’s distributions for tax purposes were comprised of 100 percent return of capital.  

J. Federal and State Income Taxation — The Company, as a corporation, is obligated to pay federal and state income tax on its taxable income. Currently, the highest regular 
marginal federal income tax rate for a corporation is 35 percent. The Company may be subject to a 20 percent federal alternative minimum tax on its federal alternative 
minimum taxable income to the extent that its alternative minimum tax exceeds its regular federal income tax.  

The Company’s trading securities and other equity securities are limited partnerships or limited liability companies which are treated as partnerships for federal and state 
income tax purposes. As a limited partner, the Company reports its allocable share of taxable income in computing its own taxable income. The Company’s tax expense or 
benefit is included in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. A valuation allowance is recognized if, based on the weight of available 
evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred income tax asset will not be realized.  

K. Leases — The Company includes assets subject to lease arrangements within Leased property, net of accumulated depreciation in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Lease 
payments received are reflected in lease income on the Consolidated Statements of Income, net of amortization of any off market adjustments.  

L. Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles — Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from five to twenty years. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred, and improvements, 
which extend the useful lives of assets, are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining estimated useful life of the asset.  

The Company initially records long-lived assets at their acquisition cost, unless the transaction is accounted for as a business combination. If the transaction is accounted for as 
a business combination, the Company allocates the purchase price to the acquired tangible and intangible assets and liabilities based on their estimated fair values. The 
Company determines the fair values of assets and liabilities based on discounted cash flow models using current market assumptions, appraisals, recent transactions involving 
similar assets or liabilities and/or other objective evidence, and depreciates the asset values over the estimated remaining useful lives.  

In connection with these transactions, the Company may acquire long-lived assets that are subject to an existing lease contract with the seller or other lessee party and the 
Company may assume outstanding debt of the seller as part of the consideration paid. If, at the time of acquisition, the existing lease or debt contract is not at current market 
terms, the Company will record an asset or liability at the time of acquisition representing the amount by which the fair value of the lease or debt contract differs from its 
contractual value. Such amount is then amortized over the remaining contract term as an adjustment to the related lease revenue or interest expense.  

M. Offering Costs — Offering costs related to the issuance of common stock are charged to additional paid-in capital when the stock is issued.  

N. Recent Accounting Pronouncement — In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04 “Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure 
Requirements” in GAAP and the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”). ASU No. 2011-04 amends FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and 
Disclosures, to establish common requirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements in accordance with GAAP and IFRSs. 
ASU No. 2011-04 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011 and for interim periods within those fiscal years. Management is currently evaluating the 
impact of these amendments and does not believe they will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.  

3. Concentrations  

The Company has historically invested in securities of privately-held and publicly-traded companies in the midstream and downstream segments of the U.S. energy 
infrastructure sector. As of November 30, 2011, investments in securities of energy infrastructure companies represented approximately 73 percent of the Company’s total 
assets. The Company is now focused on identifying and acquiring real property assets in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector that are REIT qualified.  
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The Company’s leased property at November 30, 2011 is leased to a single entity, Public Service Company of New Mexico, as further described in Note 7 below. Public 
Service Company of New Mexico’s financial condition and ability and willingness to satisfy its obligations under its leases with the Company have a considerable impact on 
the Company’s results of operations and ability to service its indebtedness.  

Mowood, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, has a ten-year contract expiring in 2015 to supply natural gas to the Department of Defense (“DOD”). Revenue related to 
the DOD contract accounted for 88 percent of sales revenues for the period from September 21, 2011 through November 30, 2011. Mowood, through its wholly owned 
subsidiary Omega, performs management and supervision services related to the expansion of the natural gas distribution system used by the DOD. Revenues related to these 
services accounted for 16 percent of sales revenues for the period from September 21, 2011 through November 30, 2011. Amounts due from the DOD account for 85 percent 
of the consolidated accounts receivable balance at November 30, 2011.  

Mowood’s contracts for its supply of natural gas are concentrated among select providers. Payments to the top supplier of natural gas accounted for 60 percent of cost of sales 
for the period from September 21, 2011 through November 30, 2011.  

4. Agreements  

The Company entered into a new management agreement after its fiscal year end as more fully described in Note 15. From the Company’s inception through November 30, 
2011, it had an Investment Advisory Agreement with Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. Under the terms of the Investment Advisory Agreement, the Adviser is paid a fee 
consisting of a base management fee and an incentive fee. The base management fee is 0.375 percent (1.5 percent annualized) of the Company’s average monthly Managed 
Assets, calculated and paid quarterly in arrears within thirty days of the end of each fiscal quarter. The term “Managed Assets” as used in the calculation of the management 
fee means total assets (including any assets purchased with or attributable to borrowed funds but excluding any net deferred tax asset) minus accrued liabilities other than (1) 
net deferred tax liabilities, (2) debt entered into for the purpose of leverage and (3) the aggregate liquidation preference of any outstanding preferred shares. The base 
management fee for any partial quarter is appropriately prorated.  

The Adviser reimbursed the Company for certain expenses in an amount equal to an annual rate of 0.25 percent of the Company’s average monthly Managed Assets during the 
period from December 1, 2008 through May 31, 2010 and in an amount equal to an annual rate of 0.50 percent of the Company’s average monthly Managed Assets from June 
1, 2010 through November 30, 2011. During the years ended November 30, 2011, November 30, 2010 and November 30, 2009, the Adviser reimbursed the Company 
$484,082, $308,003 and $225,266, respectively, which are included in management fees, net of expense reimbursement in the Consolidated Statements of Income. If the 
Adviser had not reimbursed the Company for these fees, management fees would have been higher.  

The incentive fee consists of two parts. The first part, the investment income fee, is equal to 15 percent of the excess, if any, of the Company’s Net Investment Income for the 
fiscal quarter over a quarterly hurdle rate equal to 2 percent (8 percent annualized), and multiplied, in either case, by the Company’s average monthly Net Assets for the 
quarter. “Net Assets” means the Managed Assets less deferred taxes, debt entered into for the purposes of leverage and the aggregate liquidation preference of any outstanding 
preferred shares. “Net Investment Income” means interest income (including accrued interest that we have not yet received in cash), dividend and distribution income from 
equity investments (but excluding that portion of cash distributions that are treated as a return of capital), and any other income (including any fees such as commitment, 
origination, syndication, structuring, diligence, monitoring, and consulting fees or other fees that the Company is entitled to receive from portfolio companies) accrued during 
the fiscal quarter, minus the Company’s operating expenses for such quarter (including the base management fee, expense reimbursements payable pursuant to the Investment 
Advisory Agreement, any interest expense, any accrued income taxes related to net investment income, and distributions paid on issued and outstanding preferred stock, if any, 
but excluding the incentive fee payable). Net Investment Income also includes, in the case of investments with a deferred interest or income feature (such as original issue 
discount, debt or equity instruments with a payment-in-kind feature, and zero coupon securities), accrued income that the Company has not yet received in cash. Net 
Investment Income does not include any realized capital gains, realized capital losses, or unrealized capital appreciation or depreciation. The investment income fee is 
calculated and payable quarterly in arrears within thirty (30) days of the end of each fiscal quarter. The investment income fee calculation is adjusted appropriately on the basis 
of the number of calendar days in the first fiscal quarter the fee accrues or the fiscal quarter during which the Agreement is in effect in the event of termination of the 
Agreement during any fiscal quarter. During the years ended November 30, 2011, November 30, 2010 and November 30, 2009, the Company accrued no investment income 
fees.  

The second part of the incentive fee payable to the Adviser, the capital gain incentive fee, is equal to: (A) 15 percent of (i) the Company’s net realized capital gains (realized 
capital gains less realized capital losses) on a cumulative basis from inception to the end of each fiscal year, less (ii) any unrealized capital depreciation at the end of such 
fiscal year, less (B) the aggregate amount of all capital gain fees paid to the Adviser in prior fiscal years. The capital gain incentive fee is calculated and payable annually 
within thirty (30) days of the end of each fiscal year. In the event the Investment Advisory Agreement is terminated, the capital gain incentive fee calculation shall be 
undertaken as of, and any resulting capital gain incentive fee shall be paid  
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within thirty (30) days of the date of termination. The Adviser may, from time to time, waive or defer all or any part of the compensation described in the Investment Advisory 
Agreement.  

The calculation of the capital gain incentive fee does not include any capital gains that result from that portion of any scheduled periodic distributions made possible by the 
normally recurring cash flow from the operations of portfolio companies (“Expected Distributions”) that are characterized by the Company as return of capital for U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles purposes. In that regard, any such return of capital will not be treated as a decrease in the cost basis of an investment for purposes of 
calculating the capital gain incentive fee. This does not apply to any portion of any distribution from a portfolio company that is not an Expected Distribution. Realized capital 
gains on a security will be calculated as the excess of the net amount realized from the sale or other disposition of such security over the adjusted cost basis for the security. 
Realized capital losses on a security will be calculated as the amount by which the net amount realized from the sale or other disposition of such security is less than the 
adjusted cost basis of such security. Unrealized capital depreciation on a security will be calculated as the amount by which the Company’s adjusted cost basis of such security 
exceeds the fair value of such security at the end of a fiscal year.  

The payable for capital gain incentive fees is a result of the increase or decrease in the fair value of investments and realized gains or losses from investments. For the years 
ended November 30, 2011, November 30, 2010 and November 30, 2009, the Company accrued no capital gain incentive fees. Pursuant to the Investment Advisory Agreement, 
the capital gain incentive fee is paid annually only if there are realization events and only if the calculation defined in the agreement results in an amount due. No capital gain 
incentive fees have been paid since the commencement of operations.  

U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC serves as the Company’s fund accounting services provider. The Company pays the provider a monthly fee computed at an annual rate of 
$24,000 on the first $50,000,000 of the Company’s Net Assets, 0.0125 percent on the next $200,000,000 of Net Assets, 0.0075 percent on the next $250,000,000 of Net Assets 
and 0.0025 percent on the balance of the Company’s Net Assets.  

The Adviser serves as the Company’s administrator. The Company paid the administrator a fee equal to an annual rate of 0.07 percent of aggregate average daily Managed 
Assets up to and including $150,000,000, 0.06 percent of aggregate average daily Managed Assets on the next $100,000,000, 0.05 percent of aggregate average daily Managed 
Assets on the next $250,000,000, and 0.02 percent on the balance thru November 30, 2010. On December 1, 2010, the Company entered into an Amended Administration 
Agreement with the administrator that decreased the fee to an amount equal to an annual rate of 0.04 percent of aggregate average daily Managed Assets, with a minimum 
annual fee of $30,000. This fee is calculated and accrued daily and paid quarterly in arrears.  

5. Income Taxes  

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and tax purposes. 
Components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of November 30, 2011 and November 30, 2010 are as follows:  

 

At November 30, 2011, a valuation allowance on deferred tax assets was not deemed necessary because the Company believes it is more likely than not that there is an ability 
to realize its deferred tax assets through future taxable income. Any adjustments to the Company’s estimates of future taxable income will be made in the period such 
determination is made. The Company’s policy is to record interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions as part of tax expense. As of November 30, 2011, the Company had 
no uncertain tax positions and no penalties and interest were accrued. The Company does not expect any change to its unrecognized tax positions in the twelve months 
subsequent to November 30, 2011. Tax years subsequent to the year ending November 30, 2006 remain open to examination by federal and state tax authorities.  
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      November 30, 2011       November 30, 2010 

Deferred tax assets: 
     Organization costs $ (20,068 ) $ (21,231 ) 
     Capital loss carryforwards   — (4,268,529 ) 
     Net operating loss carryforwards   (2,624,525 ) (6,343,988 ) 
     Cost recovery of leased assets (119,970 )   —
     AMT and State of Kansas credit   (205,039 ) (5,039 ) 

     Valuation allowance — 558,533 

       (2,969,602 )      (10,080,254 ) 
Deferred tax liabilities:   
     Basis reduction of investment in partnerships 2,244,914   783,156 

     Net unrealized gain on investment securities 697,152 8,640,355 

 2,942,066 9,423,511 

Total net deferred tax asset $ (27,536 ) $ (656,743 ) 



 

Total income tax expense differs from the amount computed by applying the federal statutory income tax rates of 35 percent for the year ended November 30, 2011 and 34 
percent for the years ended November 30, 2010 and 2009 to net investment loss and net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments for the years presented, as 
follows:  

 

Total income taxes are computed by applying the federal statutory rate plus a blended state income tax rate. During the year, the Company re-evaluated its overall federal and 
state income tax rate, increasing it from 35.82 percent to 37.62 percent, due to (1) an anticipated 35 percent federal rate, and (2) anticipated state apportionment of income and 
gains.  

The components of income tax expense include the following for the years presented:  

 

The deferred income tax expense for the years ended November 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 includes the impact of the change in valuation allowance for such respective years.  

As of November 30, 2011, the Company had a net operating loss for federal income tax purposes of approximately $7,236,000. The net operating loss may be carried forward 
for 20 years. If not utilized, this net operating loss will expire as follows: $3,883,000 and $3,353,000 in the years ending November 30, 2029 and 2030, respectively. As of 
November 30, 2011, the Company utilized its capital loss carryforward of approximately $12,000,000. The capital gains for the year ended November 30, 2011 have been 
estimated based on information currently available. Such estimate is subject to revision upon receipt of the 2011 tax reporting information from the individual partnerships. For 
corporations, capital losses can only be used to offset capital gains and cannot be used to offset ordinary income. As of November 30, 2011, an alternative minimum tax credit 
of $203,109 was available, which may be credited in the future against regular income tax. This credit may be carried forward indefinitely.  

The aggregate cost of securities for federal income tax purposes and securities with unrealized appreciation and depreciation, were as follows:  

 

6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments  

Various inputs are used in determining the fair value of the Company’s assets and liabilities. These inputs are summarized in the three broad levels listed below:  

� Level 1 — quoted prices in active markets for identical investments  
   

� Level 2 — other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar investments, market corroborated inputs, etc.)  
   

� Level 3 — significant unobservable inputs (including the Company’s own assumptions in determining the fair value of investments)  
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For the year ended       For the year ended       For the year ended 

November 30, 2011 November 30, 2010 November 30, 20 09 

Application of statutory income tax rate $        1,331,750 $        6,609,437 $ 90,219 
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 133,158 353,799 9,314 
Dividends received deduction (86 ) — —
Change in deferred tax liability due to change in overall tax rate (23,432 )   288,968   (68,375 ) 

Change in deferred tax valuation allowance   (558,533 ) (2,479,556 )           223,198 

Total income tax expense $ 882,857   $ 4,772,648 $ 254,356 

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended 

November 30, 2011 November 30, 2010 November 30, 2009 

Current tax expense 
     State (reflects a federal tax benefit in deferred tax expense) $ 53,650 $ — $ —

     AMT   200,000 — —

Total current tax expense 253,650   —   —

Deferred tax expense   
     Federal 585,386 4,530,152 230,554 

     State (net of federal tax benefit) 43,821 242,496   23,802 

Total deferred tax expense 629,207 4,772,648 254,356 

Total income tax expense       $ 882,857       $ 4,772,648       $ 254,356 

      November 30, 2011 November 30, 2010 

Aggregate cost for federal income tax purposes $        68,264,534       $       68,894,462 

Gross unrealized appreciation   8,307,122     32,072,976   
Gross unrealized depreciation (4,883,958 ) (5,765,015 ) 

Net unrealized appreciation $ 3,423,164 $ 26,307,961 



 

Valuation Techniques  
In general, and where applicable, the Company uses readily available market quotations based upon the last updated sales price from the principal market to determine fair 
value. This pricing methodology applies to the Company’s Level 1 trading securities.  

The Company’s other equity securities are classified as Level 3. See discussion of the valuation technique and assumptions in Note 2.  

The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing in those securities. The following tables provide 
the fair value measurements of applicable Company assets and liabilities by level within the fair value hierarchy as of November 30, 2011 and November 30, 2010. These 
assets and liabilities are measured on a recurring basis.  

 

The changes for all Level 3 assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs for the years ended November 30, 2011 and November 30, 
2010, are as follows:  

 

The Company utilizes the beginning of reporting period method for determining transfers between levels. For the year ended November 30, 2011, there were transfers out of 
Level 3 assets in the amount of $9,292,247, which represents the values of the Company’s equity interest in Mowood and subordinated debt issued to Mowood at the 
beginning of the year that were eliminated upon consolidation. There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended November 30, 2011 and November 
30, 2010, respectively.  

Certain condensed financial information of the unconsolidated affiliates follows. The information is the most recently available financial information for these companies, 
which is the last twelve months ended September 30, 2011 for High Sierra Energy, LP and VantaCore Partners, LP, and the last twelve months ended October 31, 2011 for 
Lightfoot Capital Partners LP. Adjusted EBITDA is earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, adjusted for extraordinary or non-recurring items as reported 
by the portfolio companies.  
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November 30, 2011  
  

Fair Value at 

Description November 30, 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Assets: 
     Trading Securities       $ 27,037,642       $ 27,037,642       $ —      $ —

     Other Equity Securities 41,856,730 — — 41,856,730 

Total Assets $ 68,894,372 $     27,037,642 $     — $     41,856,730 

  
November 30, 2010   
  

Fair Value at 

Description November 30, 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Assets: 
     Trading Securities $ 20,806,821 $ 20,806,821 $ — $ —

     Other Equity Securities 72,929,409 —   — 72,929,409 

Total Assets $ 93,736,230 $ 20,806,821 $ — $ 72,929,409 

Year ended Year ended 

      November 30, 2011       November 30, 2010 

Fair value beginning balance $ 72,929,409 $ 77,146,520 
Total realized and unrealized gains included in net income 1,026,134   10,473,595 
Purchases   20,987,605 750,000   
Sales     (42,275,886 )     (12,494,034 ) 
Return of capital adjustments impacting cost basis of securities (1,518,285 )   (2,946,672 ) 

Transfers out (9,292,247 ) —

Fair value ending balance $ 41,856,730 $ 72,929,409 

  
The amount of total gains (losses) for the period included in net income 
     attributable to the change in unrealized gains (losses) relating to assets 
     still held at the reporting date $ (3,287,478 ) $ 13,909,657 

Revenues $      2,867,168,000                                Total Assets $      927,171,000 

Costs and Expenses   2,810,625,000   Total Liabilities   528,174,000 

Adjusted EBITDA $ 56,543,000 Partners’ Equity $ 398,997,000 

    



 

7. Acquisition of Eastern Interconnect Project  

On June 30, 2011, the Company purchased 100 percent ownership of a 40 percent undivided interest in the Eastern Interconnect Project (“EIP”) for approximately $15.6 
million, including the assumption of $3.4 million of debt. The acquisition of the EIP was accounted for as a business combination, in accordance with ASC 805. The Company 
incurred costs of approximately $0.6 million in connection with the acquisition which were expensed during the year ended November 30, 2011. The transaction resulted in the 
acquisition of assets and liabilities as follows:  

 

Physical Assets:  
The EIP transmission assets move electricity across New Mexico between Albuquerque and Clovis. The physical assets include 216 miles of 345 kilovolts transmission lines, 
towers, easement rights, converters and other grid support components. The assets are depreciated for book purposes over an estimated useful life of 20 years. The amount of 
depreciation of leased property reflected during the year ended November 30, 2011 was $294,309.  

Lease:  
The project is leased on a triple net basis through April 1, 2015 to Public Service Company of New Mexico, an independent electric utility company serving approximately 
500,000 customers in New Mexico. Public Service Company of New Mexico is a subsidiary of PNM Resources (NYSE: PNM). At the time of expiration of the lease, the 
Company may choose to renew the lease with the lessee, the lessee may offer to repurchase the EIP, or the lease can be allowed to expire and the Company will find another 
lessee. Under the terms of the lease, the Company will receive semi-annual lease payments. At the time of acquisition, the rate of the lease was determined to be above market 
rates for similar leased assets and the Company recorded an intangible asset of $1,094,771 for this premium which is being amortized as contra-lease income over the 
remaining lease term.  

Debt  
The Company assumed a note with an outstanding principal balance of $3.4 million. The debt is collateralized by the EIP transmission assets. The note matures on October 1, 
2012 and accrues interest at an annual rate of 10.25 percent, with principal and interest payments due on a semi-annual basis. At the time of acquisition, the interest rate on the 
assumed debt was determined to be above market rates for similar debt and the Company recorded an intangible of $186,493 for this premium which is being amortized as a 
contra-interest expense over the remaining debt term.  

8. Property and Equipment  

Property and equipment consists of the following:  

 

The amount of depreciation of property and equipment recognized for the period from September 21, 2011 through November 30, 2011 was $69,945.  
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Physical assets $    14,126,849   
Lease receivable 711,229 
Intangible lease asset 1,094,771 
Debt   (3,409,000 ) 
Fair value premium on debt (186,493 ) 

Interest payable (87,356 ) 

     Net cash consideration paid $ 12,250,000 

      November 30, 2011 

Natural gas pipeline $ 5,215,424 
Vehicles 98,717   
Computers 12,150 

  5,326,291 

Less accumulated depreciation        (1,483,616 ) 

$ 3,842,675 



 

9. Leases  

The Company’s investment in EIP is leased under net operating leases with various terms to Public Service Company of New Mexico (“PNM”). PNM is referred to as the 
“Major Tenant”.  

The future contracted minimum rental receipts for all net leases as of November 30, 2011 are as follows:  

 

In view of the fact that the Major Tenant leases a substantial portion of the Company’s net leased property which is a significant source of revenues and operating income, its 
financial condition and ability and willingness to satisfy its obligations under its lease with the Company, have a considerable impact on the results of operation and the 
Company’s ability to service its indebtedness.  

The Major Tenant is currently subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is required to file with the SEC annual reports 
containing audited financial statements and quarterly reports containing unaudited financial statements. The audited financial statements and unaudited financial statements of 
the Major Tenant can be found on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. The Company makes no representation as to the accuracy or completeness of the audited and unaudited 
financial statements of the Major Tenant but has no reason not to believe the accuracy or completeness of such information. In addition, the Major Tenant has no duty, 
contractual or otherwise, to advise the Company of any events that might have occurred subsequent to the date of such financial statements which could affect the significance 
or accuracy of such information. None of the information in the public reports of the Major Tenant that are filed with the SEC is incorporated by reference into, or in any way 
form part of this filing.  

On December 31, 2009, Mowood sold one of its wholly owned subsidiaries to an unrelated third party. As part of that agreement, Mowood assumed a lease obligation, 
including insurance and other maintenance costs, for office space to be used by the sold subsidiary through April 2013. The fair value of the future minimum lease payments 
and estimated costs were recorded as a liability upon the sale of the subsidiary.  

 

10. Intangibles  

The Company has recorded an intangible lease asset for the fair value of the amount by which the remaining contractual lease payments exceed market lease rates at the time 
of acquisition. The intangible lease asset is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term, which expires on April 1, 2015. Amortization of the 
intangible lease asset is reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income as a reduction to lease income.  

 

Estimated amortization expense for the five years succeeding November 30, 2011 are as follows:  
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Year Ending November 30, Amount 

2012 $ 2,844,914 
2013 2,844,914 
2014   2,844,914 
2015 1,422,457 

Thereafter —

Total $     9,957,199 

Years Ending November 30, Lease Obligation       Interest Portion       Estimated Expenses       Total Obligation 

2012       $ 80,453 $        (2,948 ) $ 2,403 $ 79,908 

2013   27,079   (238 )   801   27,642 

$         107,532 $ (3,186 ) $                 3,204 $        107,550 

Intangible lease asset 
Balance at June 30, 2011 $     1,094,771   
Less accumulated depreciation   (121,641 ) 

Balance at November 30, 2011 $ 973,130 

Year Ending November 30, Amount 

2012 $     291,939 
2013 291,939 
2014 291,939 
2015   97,313 

2016 —

Total $ 973,130 



 

11. Credit Facilities  

On November 30, 2011, the Company entered into a 180-day rolling evergreen margin loan facility with Bank of America, N.A. The terms of the agreement provide for a 
$10,000,000 facility that is secured by certain of the Company’s assets. Outstanding balances generally will accrue interest at a variable rate equal to one-month LIBOR plus 
0.75 percent and unused portions of the facility will accrue a fee equal to an annual rate of 0.25 percent. The Company did not have any borrowings outstanding as of 
November 30, 2011. As of November 30, 2011, the Company had segregated trading securities with an aggregate value of $1,245,350 to serve as collateral for potential 
borrowings under the loan facility.  

On October 29, 2011, Mowood entered into a revolving note payable with a financial institution with a maximum borrowing base of $1,250,000. Borrowings on the note are 
secured by all of Mowood’s assets. Interest accrues at LIBOR, plus a 400 percent margin (4.25 percent at November 30, 2011), is payable monthly, with all outstanding 
principal and accrued interest payable on October 29, 2012. There are no outstanding borrowings under this agreement at November 30, 2011. The agreement contains various 
restrictive covenants, with the most significant relating to minimum consolidated fixed charge ratio, the incidence of additional indebtedness, member distributions, extension 
of guaranties, future investments in other subsidiaries and change in ownership.  

12. Warrants  

At November 30, 2011 and November 30, 2010, the Company had 945,594 warrants issued and outstanding. The warrants were issued to stockholders that invested in the 
Company’s initial private placements and became exercisable on February 7, 2007 (the closing date of the Company’s initial public offering of common shares), subject to a 
lock-up period with respect to the underlying common shares. Each warrant entitled the holder to purchase one common share at the exercise price of $15.00 per common 
share. Warrants were issued as separate instruments from the common shares and are permitted to be transferred independently from the common shares. The warrants have no 
voting rights and the common shares underlying the unexercised warrants have no voting rights until such common shares are received upon exercise of the warrants.  

On April 8, 2011, a proposal was approved by the Company’s stockholders which allowed the Company to amend the exercise price of its outstanding warrants from $15.00 
per common share to an amount equal to the greater of the market price of the Company’s common shares on the New York Stock Exchange or NAV, each as determined at 
the end of the fiscal quarter immediately following approval of the proposal, plus 7.0 percent, and to extend the expiration date of such warrants by one year. Based on these 
guidelines, the exercise price of the warrants was changed to $11.41 per common share as of May 31, 2011. All warrants expire on February 6, 2014. This modification was 
not material to the financial statements.  

13. Earnings Per Share  

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:  
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For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended 

November 30, 2011 November 30, 2010 November 30, 2009 

Net income       $         2,922,143       $        14,666,874       $ 10,994 

Basic and diluted weighted average shares (1) 9,159,809 9,107,070          8,997,145 
Basic and diluted earnings per share $ 0.32 $ 1.61 $ 0.00 

(1) Warrants to purchase shares of common stock were outstanding during the periods reflected in the table above, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the warrants’ 
exercise price was greater than the average market value of the common shares and, therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive. 



 

14. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)  

Summarized unaudited quarterly financial data:  
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For the Fiscal Quarter Ended 

   February 28, 2011     May 31, 2011     August 31, 2011     November 30, 2011 (1) 

Sales revenue $ — $ — $ — $ 2,161,723 

Lease income — — 425,496 638,244 

     Total revenue — — 425,496 2,799,967 

Cost of sales — — — 1,689,374 
Management fees, net of expense reimbursements 234,680 241,193 248,367 243,923 

All other expenses 153,843 157,012 958,468 769,024 

     Total expenses 388,523 398,205   1,206,835 2,702,321 

Income (loss) from operations, before income taxes (388,523 ) (398,205 ) (781,339 ) 97,646 

Deferred tax benefit (expense), net 135,261 145,248 303,528   (27,020 ) 

Income (loss) from operations (253,262 ) (252,957 ) (477,811 ) 70,626 

Realized and unrealized gain (loss) on securities       
     transactions, before income taxes 677,745     4,441,071 2,043,019          (2,578,087 ) 
Distributions and income from investments, net 561,786   253,396   (189,001 )   25,492 

Other income   — 40,000 — —

     Total other income (loss), before income taxes        1,239,531 4,734,467 1,854,018 (2,552,595 ) 

Current and deferred tax benefit (expense), net 127,001 (1,698,498 ) (785,568 ) 917,191 

Total other income (loss) 1,366,532 3,035,969   1,068,450 (1,635,404 ) 

     Net income (loss) $ 1,113,270 $    2,783,012 $ 590,639 $ (1,564,778 ) 

Basic and diluted earnings per share $ 0.12 $ 0.30 $ 0.07 $ (0.17 ) 

(1) Results of operations for the fiscal quarter ended November 30, 2011 reflect the consolidation of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Mowood, LLC, effective September 21, 2011. 

For the Fiscal Quarter Ended 

   February 28, 2010    May 31, 2010    August 31, 2010    November 30, 2010 

Total revenue $  — $  — $  — $  —

Management fees, net of expense reimbursements 258,268 258,087 191,174 218,291 

All other expenses 220,187 255,058 370,734 126,577 

     Total expenses 478,455 513,145 561,908 344,868 

Income (loss) from operations, before income taxes (478,455 ) (513,145 ) (561,908 ) (344,868 ) 

Deferred tax benefit (expense), net 73,198 298,752 210,771 125,496 

Income (loss) from operations (405,257 ) (214,393 ) (351,137 ) (219,372 ) 

Realized and unrealized gain (loss) on securities 

     transactions, before income taxes 4,529,473 (6,711,026 ) 11,649,852 9,977,772 
Distributions and income from investments, net 681,764 380,495 14,865 776,123   
Other income   10,392 8,688 8,000 11,500 

     Total other income (loss), before income taxes   5,221,629 (6,321,843 )   11,672,717     10,765,395 

Current and deferred tax benefit (expense), net       (798,849 )      (744,134 )      (778,389 )        (3,159,493 ) 

Total other income (loss) 4,422,780   (7,065,977 )   10,894,328 7,605,902 

     Net income (loss) $ 4,017,523   $    (7,280,370 ) $    10,543,191 $     7,386,530 

Basic and diluted earnings per share $ 0.44 $ (0.80 ) $ 1.16 $ 0.81 



 

15. Subsequent Events  

On December 1, 2011, the Company terminated its Investment Advisory Agreement with the Adviser and executed a Management Agreement with Corridor InfraTrust 
Management, LLC (“Corridor”). The terms of the new Management Agreement include a quarterly management fee equal to 0.25 percent (1.00 percent annualized) of the 
value of the Company’s average monthly managed assets for such quarter. Managed assets means all of the securities of the Company and all of the real property assets of the 
Company (including any securities or real property assets purchased with or attributable to any borrowed funds) minus all of the accrued liabilities other than (1) deferred taxes 
and (2) debt entered into for the purpose of leverage. The Management Agreement also includes a quarterly incentive fee of 10 percent of the increase in distributions paid 
over a threshold distribution equal to $0.125 per share per quarter. The Management Agreement also requires at least half of any incentive fees to be reinvested in the 
Company’s common stock. In addition, the Company entered into a new Advisory Agreement by and among the Company, Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. and Corridor 
under which Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. will provide certain securities focused investment services necessary to evaluate, monitor and liquidate the Company’s 
remaining securities portfolio and also provide the Company with certain operational (i.e. non-investment) services. Corridor will compensate Tortoise Capital Advisors, 
L.L.C. for such services provided to the Company.  

On January 25, 2012, the Company filed an amended shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the purposes of raising additional capital.  

On February 6, 2012, the Company declared a $0.11 per share distribution to be paid on March 1, 2012 to stockholders of record on February 22, 2012.  

The Company performed an evaluation of subsequent events through the date the financial statements were issued and determined that no additional items require recognition 
or disclosure.  
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)  

Officers and Directors as of December 1, 2011  

 

Director and Officer Compensation  

The Company does not compensate any of its directors who are “interested persons” (as defined in Section 2 (a) (19) of the 1940 Act) or any of its officers. For the year ended 
November 30, 2011, the aggregate compensation paid by the Company to the independent directors was $69,000. The Company did not pay any special compensation to any 
of its directors or officers.  

Forward-Looking Statements  

This report contains “forward-looking statements.” By their nature, all forward-looking statements involve risk and uncertainties, and actual results could differ materially 
from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements.  

Certifications  

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer submitted to the New York Stock Exchange the annual CEO certification as required by Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE Listed 
Company Manual.  

The Company has filed with the SEC the certification of its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.  

Proxy Voting Policies  

A description of the policies and procedures that the Company uses to determine how to vote proxies relating to portfolio securities owned by the Company is available to 
stockholders (i) without charge, upon request by calling the Company at (913) 981-1020 or toll-free at (866) 362-9331 and on the Company’s Web site at 
www.tortoiseadvisors.com/tto.cfm; and (ii) on the SEC’s Web site at www.sec.gov.  

Privacy Policy  

The Company is committed to maintaining the privacy of its stockholders and safeguarding their non-public personal information. The following information is provided to 
help you understand what personal information the Company collects, how the Company protects that information and why, in certain cases, the Company may share 
information with select other parties.  

Generally, the Company does not receive any non-public personal information relating to its stockholders, although certain non-public personal information of its stockholders 
may become available to the Company. The Company does not disclose any non-public personal information about its stockholders or a former stockholder to anyone, except 
as required by law or as is necessary in order to service stockholder accounts (for example, to a transfer agent).  

The Company restricts access to non-public personal information about its stockholders to employees of its Adviser with a legitimate business need for the information. The 
Company maintains physical, electronic and procedural safeguards designed to protect the non-public personal information of its stockholders.  

Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan  

If a stockholder’s shares of common stock (“common shares”) of the Company are registered directly with the Company or with a brokerage firm that participates in the 
Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan (the “Plan”) through the facilities of the Depository Trust Company and such stockholder’s account is coded dividend reinvestment by 
such brokerage firm, all distributions are automatically reinvested for stockholders by the Plan Agent, Computershare Trust Company, Inc. (the “Agent”) in additional 
common shares (unless a stockholder is ineligible or elects otherwise).  

The Company will use primarily newly-issued shares of the Company’s common stock to implement the Plan, whether its shares are trading at a premium or discount to net 
asset value (“NAV”). However, the Company reserves the right to instruct the Agent to purchase shares in the open market in connection with the Company’s obligations 
under the Plan. The number of  
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Name TTO Position 

Conrad S. Ciccotello Director 
John R. Graham Director 
Charles E. Heath Director 
Richard C. Green Director and Chairman of the Board 
David J. Schulte Director and Chief Executive Officer 
Terry C. Matlack Chief Financial Officer 
Edward Russell President 
David Haley Senior Vice President 
Rebecca M. Sandring Treasurer 
P. Bradley Adams Assistant Treasurer 
Connie J. Savage Secretary 
Diane M. Bono Assistant Secretary 



 

newly issued shares will be determined by dividing the total dollar amount of the distribution payable to the participant by the closing price per share of the Company’s 
common stock on the distribution payment date, or the average of the reported bid and asked prices if no sale is reported for that day. If distributions are reinvested in shares 
purchased on the open market, then the number of shares received by a stockholder shall be determined by dividing the total dollar amount of the distribution payable to such 
stockholder by the weighted average price per share (including brokerage commissions and other related costs) for all shares purchased by the Agent on the open-market in 
connection with such distribution. Such open-market purchases will be made by the Agent as soon as practicable, but in no event more than 30 days after the distribution 
payment date.  

There will be no brokerage charges with respect to shares issued directly by us as a result of distributions payable either in shares or in cash. However, each participant will 
pay a pro rata share of brokerage commissions incurred with respect to the Plan Agent’s open-market purchases in connection with the reinvestment of distributions. If a 
participant elects to have the Plan Agent sell part or all of his or her common shares and remit the proceeds, such participant will be charged his or her pro rata share of 
brokerage commissions on the shares sold plus a $15.00 transaction fee. The automatic reinvestment of distributions will not relieve participants of any federal, state or local 
income tax that may be payable (or required to be withheld) on such distributions.  

Participation in the Plan is completely voluntary and may be terminated at any time without penalty by giving notice in writing to the Agent at the address set forth below, or 
by contacting the Agent as set forth below; such termination will be effective with respect to a particular distribution if notice is received prior to the record date for such 
distribution.  

Additional information about the Plan may be obtained by writing to Computershare Trust Company, N.A., P.O. Box 43078, Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3078, by 
contacting them by phone at (800) 426-5523, or by visiting their Web site at www.computershare.com.  
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SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  

 
February 13, 2012  
 

POWER OF ATTORNEY  

Know all people by these presents, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints David J. Schulte and Terry C. Matlack, and each of them, his or 
her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and substitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all 
capacities, to sign any amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting 
unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and 
about the premises, as fully and to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, herby confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or either of 
them, or his or their substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the company and in the 
capacities indicated on February 13, 2012.  
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Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation  

TORTOISE CAPITAL RESOURCES CORPORATION  
(Registrant)  

        
  By:  /s/David J. Schulte   
    David J. Schulte   
    Director and Chief Executive Officer   

Signature    Capacity  
          
           /s/Terry C. Matlack                  Chief Financial Officer 

        (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 

          
  /s/David J. Schulte     Director and Chief Executive Officer 

        (Principal Executive Officer) 

          
  /s/Conrad S. Ciccotello     Director 

          
  /s/John R. Graham     Director 

          
  /s/Charles E. Heath     Director 

          
  /s/Richard C. Green     Director 



 

Exhibit 14.1 

CODE OF ETHICS FOR PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND  
PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER (“OFFICER CODE”)  

INTRODUCTION  

Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation (the “Company”) requires the Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer or other Company Officer performing similar 
functions as set forth in Exhibit A (“Covered Officers”) to maintain the highest ethical and legal standards while performing their duties and responsibilities to the Company, 
with particular emphasis on those duties that relate to the preparation and reporting of financial information of the Company. The following overriding principles govern the 
conduct of Covered Officers:  

� Covered Officers shall act with honesty and integrity, avoiding actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships and shall 
promptly report any potential conflicts.  
   

� Covered Officers shall not use their personal influence or personal relationships improperly to influence investment decisions or financial reporting by the Company 
whereby the Covered Officer would benefit personally to the detriment of the Company or take action, or fail to take action, for the individual personal benefit of the 
Covered Officer rather than the benefit of the Company.  
   

� Covered Officers shall promote full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that the Company files with, or submits to, the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and in other public communications made by the Company and that are within the Covered Officer’s responsibility.  
   

� Covered Officers shall promote compliance with applicable laws and governmental rules and regulations.  
   

� Covered Officers shall promptly report violations of this Code.  

Covered Officers are reminded of their obligations under the code of ethics of the Company and the Code of Ethics of Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. adopted under Rule 
17j-1 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”). The obligations under those codes apply independently of this Officer Code and are not a part of 
this Officer Code.  

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  

Overview. Each Covered Officer should adhere to a high standard of business ethics and should be sensitive to and seek to avoid situations that may give rise to actual as well 
as apparent conflicts of interest. A “conflict of interest” occurs when a Covered Officer’s other interests interfere with the interests of, or his or her service to, the Company. 
For example, a conflict of interest would arise if a Covered Officer, or a member of his or her family, receives improper personal benefits as a result of his or her position with 
the Company.  

Certain conflicts of interest arise out of the relationships between Covered Officers and the Company and already are subject to conflict of interest provisions in the 1940 Act 
and the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the “Advisers Act”). For example, Covered Officers may not individually engage in certain transactions (such as the 
purchase or sale of securities or other property) with the Company because of their status as “affiliated persons” of the Company. The Company and its investment adviser 
have adopted compliance programs and procedures designed to prevent, or identify and correct, violations of these provisions. This Officer Code does not, and is not intended 
to, duplicate or replace these programs and procedures, and such conflicts fall outside of the parameters of this Officer Code.  

Although typically not presenting an opportunity for improper personal benefit, conflicts arise from, or as a result of, the contractual relationships between the Company and 
the investment adviser of which the Covered Officers are also officers or employees. As a result, this Officer Code recognizes that Covered Officers will, in the normal course 
of their duties (whether formally for the Company or for the investment adviser, or for both), be involved in establishing policies and implementing decisions that will have 
different effects on the adviser and the Company. The participation of the Covered Officers in such activities is inherent in the contractual relationship between the Company 
and the investment adviser and is consistent with the performance by the Covered Officers of their duties as officers of the Company. Thus, if performed in conformity with 
the provisions of the 1940 Act and the Advisers Act, such activities will be deemed to have been performed ethically.  

Other conflicts of interest are covered by this Officer Code, even if such conflicts of interest are not subject to provisions in the 1940 Act and the Advisers Act. The following 
list provides examples of conflicts of interest under this Officer Code, but Covered Officers should keep in mind that these examples are not exhaustive.  

Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation  



 

Disclosure of Potential Conflicts. Each Covered Officer shall provide prompt and full disclosure to the Code Compliance Officer (as defined below), in writing, prior to 
entering into any material transaction or relationship which may reasonably be expected to give rise to a conflict (other than conflicts arising from the advisory relationship). 
This includes, but is not limited to, the following:  

� service as a director, officer, partner, consultant or in any other key role with any company with which the Company has current or prospective business dealings;  
   

� the receipt by a Covered Officer and his or her family members of any gifts from any company with which the Company has current or prospective business dealings if 
it influences or gives the appearance of influencing the recipient;  
   

� the receipt of customary business amenities from any company with which the Company has current or prospective business dealings unless such amenity is business-
related, reasonable in cost, appropriate as to time and place, and neither so frequent nor so costly as to raise any question of impropriety;  
   

� any ownership by a Covered Officer and his or her family members of significant financial interest in any company with which the Company has current or prospective 
business dealings, other than its investment adviser, principal, underwriter, transfer agent or any affiliated person thereof; and  
   

� a direct or indirect financial interest in commissions, transaction charges or spreads paid by the Company for effecting portfolio transactions or for selling or redeeming 
shares other than an interest arising from the Covered Officer’s employment, such as compensation or equity ownership.  

DISCLOSURE AND COMPLIANCE  

� Each Covered Officer should familiarize himself or herself with the disclosure requirements generally applicable to the Company.  
   

� Each Covered Officer should, to the extent appropriate within his or her area of responsibility, consult with other officers and employees of the Company and the 
adviser or its affiliates with the goal of promoting full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in such reports and documents the Company files with, or 
submits to, the SEC.  
   

� Each Covered Officer should not knowingly misrepresent, or cause others to misrepresent, facts about the Company to others, whether within or outside the Company, 
including to the trustees and auditors of the Company, and to governmental regulators and self-regulatory organizations.  
   

� It is the responsibility of each Covered Officer to promote compliance with the standards and restrictions imposed by laws, rules and regulations applicable to the 
Company.  

REPORTING AND ACCOUNTABILITY  

� Upon adoption of the Officer Code (or thereafter as applicable, upon becoming a Covered Officer), each Covered Officer shall affirm in writing to the Code 
Compliance Officer that he or she has received, read and understands the Officer Code. Annually thereafter each Covered Officer shall affirm that he or she has 
complied with the requirements of the Officer Code.  
   

� Each Covered Officer shall notify the Code Compliance Officer promptly if he or she knows of any violation of this Officer Code. Failure to do so is itself a violation 
of this Officer Code.  
   

� A Covered Officer must not retaliate against any officer or employee of the Company or its affiliated persons for reports of potential violations that are made in good 
faith.  
   

� The provisions of this Officer Code, other than amendments to Exhibit A, and any waivers, including implicit waivers, shall be disclosed in accordance with SEC rules 
and regulations.  

CODE ADMINISTRATION  

Except as described below, the Code Compliance Officer is responsible for applying this Officer Code to specific situations in which questions may arise and has the authority 
to interpret this Officer Code in any particular situation. The Directors of the Company hereby designate Kenneth Malvey as the Code Compliance Officer. The Code 
Compliance Officer (or his designee) shall take all action he considers appropriate to investigate any actual or potential conflicts or violations reported to him.  

Any matters that the Code Compliance Officer believes are a conflict or violation will be reported to the Audit Committee, which shall determine sanctions or other 
appropriate action. No Covered Officer who is a member of such committee may participate in any determination under this Officer Code. The Audit Committee shall be 
responsible for reviewing any requests for waivers from the provisions of this Officer Code. Any violations of this Officer Code, any waivers granted from the Officer Code 
and any potential conflicts and their resolution shall be reported to the Directors of the Company at the next regular meeting.  



 

Any amendments to this Officer Code, other than amendments to Exhibit A and clerical or administrative corrections, must be approved or ratified by a majority vote of the 
Directors, including a majority of independent Directors.  

CONFIDENTIALITY  

All reports and records prepared or maintained pursuant to this Officer Code will be considered confidential and shall be maintained and protected accordingly. Except as 
otherwise required by law or this Officer Code, such matters shall not be disclosed to anyone other than the Directors, counsel to the Company and the investment adviser of 
the Company.  

INTERNAL USE  

The Officer Code is intended solely for the internal use by the Company and does not constitute an admission, by or on behalf of the Company, as to any fact, circumstance or 
legal conclusion.  

Adopted: September 12, 2005  



 

EXHIBIT A  

Persons Covered by this Code of Ethics  

 

Name Title 

David J. Schulte Principal Executive Officer 

Terry C. Matlack Principal Financial Officer 



 

Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATIONS  

I, David J. Schulte, certify that:  

 

 

1.       I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2011 of Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation; 

  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in 

light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 
  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, 

results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
  
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 

13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 
  

(a)       Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material 
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

  
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles; 

  
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 

disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
  

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the 
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal 
control over financial reporting; and 

  
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s 

auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 
  

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial 

reporting. 

Date: February 13, 2012 By:  /s/ David J. Schulte     
David J. Schulte 

Chief Executive Officer 



 

Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATIONS  

I, Terry Matlack, certify that:  

 

 

1.       I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2011 of Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation; 

  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in 

light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 
  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, 

results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
  
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 

13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 
  

(a)       Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material 
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

  
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles; 

  
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 

disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
  

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the 
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal 
control over financial reporting; and 

  
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s 

auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 
  

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial 

reporting. 

Date: February 13, 2012 By:  /s/ Terry Matlack   
Terry Matlack 

Chief Financial Officer 



 

Exhibit 32.1 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,  

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

In connection with the Annual Report of Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2011 as filed with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), we, David J. Schulte, Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Terry Matlack, Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: (1) the Report fully complies 
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and (2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all 
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.  

 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the 
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  

By: /s/ David J. Schulte   
David J. Schulte   
Chief Executive Officer   
Date: February 13, 2012   
  
  
By: /s/ Terry Matlack   
Terry Matlack   
Chief Financial Officer   
Date: February 13, 2012   


